
 
 
Bill Cullen MBA (ISM), BA(Hons) MRTPI 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Finance & Performance Scrutiny 

 
 Cllr C Ladkin (Chairman) 

Cllr P Williams (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr JMT Collett 
Cllr DS Cope 
Cllr SM Gibbens 
 

Cllr K Morrell 
Cllr LJ Mullaney 
Cllr MC Sheppard-Bools 
Cllr R Webber-Jones 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear member, 
 
There will be a meeting of the FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY as a virtual meeting 
via Zoom on MONDAY, 17 JANUARY 2022 at 6.30 pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Rebecca Owen 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Date: 07 January 2022 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY -  17 JANUARY 2022 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

3.   ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by reason 
of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting. 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such disclosure to 
be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda. 

5.   QUESTIONS  

 To hear any questions received in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12. 

6.   FRONTLINE SERVICE REVIEW - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH (Pages 5 - 54) 

 To update members on the performance of the Environmental Health service 

7.   FINANCIAL OUTTURN QUARTER 2 - 2021/22 (Pages 55 - 78) 

 To update members on the financial outturn quarter 2 for 2021/22 

8.   MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY PROGRESS REPORT - VERBAL UPDATE  

 A verbal update for members on the medium term financial strategy 

9.   FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 79 - 82) 

10.   ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY  

 As raised under item 3. 

 



-71 - 

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY 
 

1 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 6.30 PM 
 
 
PRESENT: Cllr C Ladkin - Chairman 
 Cllr P Williams – Vice-Chairman 
Cllr JMT Collett, Cllr SM Gibbens, Cllr K Morrell, Cllr LJ Mullaney and Cllr R Webber-
Jones 
 
Officers in attendance: Matthew Bowers, Rebecca Owen, Rebecca Valentine-Wilkinson 
and Ashley Wilson 
 
 

195 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Sheppard-Bools. 
 

196 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
It was moved by Councillor Williams, seconded by Councillor Webber-Jones and   

RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 13 September be 
confirmed as a correct record. 

 
197 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No interests were declared. 
 

198 BUSINESS RATES AND POOLING UPDATE - QUARTER 1 2021/2022  
 
Members were updated on the 2021 quarter 1 position in relation to business rates and 
pooling.  
 
The report was noted. 
 

199 BUSINESS RATES AND POOLING UPDATE - QUARTER 2 2021/2022  
 
Members were updated on the 2021 quarter 2 position in relation to business rates and 
pooling. It was noted that the S31 Grant had decreased between Q1 and Q2 because 
there had been a large number of various “reliefs” given to retail businesses that had 
been reversed in Q2. 
 
It was also highlighted that in two tier areas all business rates income would be retained 
by the local planning authority as the decision maker for new renewable energy 
businesses that locate within the council area. This meant that HBBC would keep 100% 
of the business rates where it agreed the planning permission for renewable energy 
schemes. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

-72 - 

200 SUNDRY DEBTS - QUARTER 2 2021/2022  
 
Members were updated on the quarter 2 position in relation to sundry debts.  
 
It was noted that the Council had a performance indicator (KPI) for debt over 90 days old 
and included within that was an “in dispute” debt for £395,095 where the council had 
agreed certain terms with large organisations in relation to Covid. Unfortunately invoices 
were sent out just before the terms were finalised so it was confirmed that these figures 
were not really disputes and that the debtor ledger had not been adjusted for these 
agreements.   
 
It was confirmed that the authority was in a better position compared to the previous 
quarter 4. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 

201 MONTHLY OUTTURN REPORTS FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2021 TO JUNE 2021  
 
The financial outturn position as at June 2021 was presented to Members. It was 
highlighted that the overall position was a worsening position in terms of the deficit that 
was increasing. The key reasons for this were all Covid related: 
 

 Homelessness pressures that were still being picked up leading to an 
overspend on this budget 

 Negotiations with the Leisure Centre who were struggling and asking for 
ongoing support  

 Car park income was £110k down, but it was not known whether this was 
due to peoples’ behaviour that had changed or whether it was a longer 
term implication.  

 There was a variance on the capital spend on the crematorium. There 
were ongoing discussions with regards to the ground conditions. This 
meant there was a slippage in the capital spend. It was confirmed that 
once there was update on this position that budget would be re-profiled. 
 

Members noted the report. 
 

202 TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTER 2 2021/22  
 
Members were presented with a report on the council’s treasury management activity in 
the second quarter of 2021/22.  
 
It was highlighted that forecasts and interest rates were low. Also the level of short-term 
investments had a very low return which had an impact on income and the MTFS. 
 
The short-term borrowing for managing cash flow purposes was noted.  
 
Members noted the report. 
 

Page 2



 

-73 - 

203 PLANNING SERVICE REVIEW  
 
Members were updated on the performance of the planning service. It was highlighted 
that: 
 

 Performance in the development management team had been good in the 
first six months of the pandemic  

 Performance in the last few months had reduced 

 There had been an increase in planning applications and more of a 
complexity in those applications 

 There had  been an increase in the number of appeals which had 
unfortunately diverted officers attention to work on these appeals 

 For strategic planning the local plan was moving forward and was going to 
Council at the end of November. This was then going out for consultation 
and then on to government. 

 Twycross Zoo was successful with the £20 million levelling up fund which 
the Major Projects team had worked on. 

 
With regards to recruitment and retention within the planning team, work had been going 
on behind the scenes for interim cover and to recruit to those vacant posts.  
 
In response to Members questions it was confirmed that a number of the vacant posts 
had been vacant for some time within the team and it was a known issue across the 
country that there was an issue in recruiting to these planning roles. 
 
It was confirmed that support was being received from Harborough DC with some of the 
positions and some interim staff were already in place with three more starting in the 
next few weeks. Support had also been secured from Capita who were undertaking 
some of the backlog in planning applications. 
 
A member raised a question regarding the local plan and the county council’s suggestion 
that they would oppose the plan on examination. It was confirmed that the team had 
been working closely with the highways team at Leicestershire County Council and that 
the indication was that the strategy would not place any significant barriers to 
development. 
 
A member raised his concern around the planning performance over the last nine 
months and the risk of falling into special measures by the government due to the 
increase and complexity in applications and them not being determined in the statutory 
period.  
 
It was confirmed that performance for major applications was above the national 
indicator at 80% with minor applications at 61% against a target of 65% with others 
significantly below at 63%. It was confirmed that measures were in place to resolve the 
situation as long as the major application indicator stayed above target.  
 
Members asked that their thanks go to the Major Projects team for their work with 
Twycross Zoo and their successful funding application. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 

204 FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Consideration was given to the work programme for 2021/22 and beyond.  
 

Page 3



 

-74 - 

A Member asked that the Leisure Centre performance review report that was due in 
March 2022 be forward looking rather than backward looking. 
 
Members also requested an update on the Planning performance and performance 
targets and the position in relation to key issues and work to evidence and adjust these 
problems. It was confirmed that this would be included in the quarterly performance and 
risk management framework report but members would be kept updated. 
 
Members noted the work programme. 
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 7.36 pm) 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 4



06/16 

 
 
Forward timetable of consultation and decision making 
 
Finance and Performance Scrutiny 17 January 2022 
 
Wards affected:  All 
 
 

Review of the services of gambling, alcohol, taxi & scrap metal licensing; 
tattooists & body piercing registration 

 
 

Report of Director Environment & Planning 
 
1. Purpose of report 

1.1 To report on the activities of the Environmental Health Service regarding the 
services of gambling, alcohol, taxi, & scrap metal licensing; tattooists & body 
piercing registration 

 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Note the report 
 
3. Background to the report 
 
 With the number of service areas reviewed this report has been set out with 

the main body highlighting the performance parameters for each license/ 
registration under review. More detailed commentary of the scope, processing 
and detail on that licence/ registration has been set out within the relevant 
appendices for that license / registration. 
 

3.1 The Gambling Act 2005 Performance Parameters 

3.1.1   Under the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 Hinckley & Bosworth Borough 

Council is the Licensing Authority for the administration and enforcement of 

‘gambling’, defined as betting, gaming and participating in a lottery. As the 

licensing authority Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council is responsible for 

issuing premises licenses to casinos, betting offices, race tracks, bingo clubs, 

adult gaming facilities and family entertainment centres where children are 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



06/16 

allowed. The local authority also issue permits for gaming machines and small 

society lotteries. 

3.1.2 The table below shows the current Licences issued by the Council. 

Licence Type   Current Licences 

Gaming Machine ( Pub auto entitlement) 72 

Premises Licence 6 

Alcohol licence Gaming Machine 

Permits 

7 

Club Machine Gaming Permits 14 

Small Society Lotteries 134 

Total 233 

 

3.1.3 Pro-active compliance inspections are carried out to all the gambling premises 

in the borough. The table below details the Gambling Licensing Inspections 

carried out over the past 3 years with a reduction in activity seen in 2020/21 

due to the Covid pandemic: 

Compliance Inspections 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Gaming Machines in Public Houses 50 30 11 

Gaming Machine in Clubs 6 8 1 

Premises licence compliance checks 5 6 1 

Total Inspections 61 44 13 

 

3.1.4  The table below shows the service costs over the last three financial years. 

Financial Year  Budget Actual Variance 

2018/2019 7,164 8,767    -1,603 

2019/2020  4,040 5,220 -1,180 

2020/2021 6,670 8,545 -1,875 

3.1.5  The table below shows the income for all permits and licences for 2020/21 

with the final row showing the total net expenditure for the service as reflected 

in the table above. 

Page 6



06/16 

Gambling Act Income Budget Actual Variance 

Lottery Licence Fees -3670 -2960 -710 

Alcohol licence Gaming 

Machine Permit 

-1150 -350 -350 

Prize Gaming Permit -50 0 -50 

Club Gaming Permit -100 0 -100 

Premises Licence Fees -2000 -1850 -150 

Club Machine Gaming 

Permit 

-300 -650 350 

Revenue Income 2021 -7270 -5810 -1460 

Net Expenditure 6,670 8,545 -1,875 

 

3.1.6  The overall cost of the service to the Council in 2020/21 was £1,875, 

marginally more than previous years and likely a reflection on the effects of 

the Covid pandemic, as some licences were not renewed. As these fees are 

statutory, there is no scope to increase them to cover any potential losses. 

3.2  Taxi Licensing Performance Parameters 

3.2.1  Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) licensing in England and Wales is 

undertaken by the licensing authority (Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 

Council), with the aim of ensuring the public travel in safe, well maintained 

vehicles driven by competent drivers, as well as providing a fair and 

reasonable service for the taxi and PHV trade. 

3.2.2  The Table Below shows the current licences issued by the service as at 31 

October 2021. 

Licence Type   Current Licences 

Hackney Carriage Driver 132 

Private Hire Driver 32 

Private Hire Operator 20 

Private Hire Vehicle 41 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle 88 

Page 7



06/16 

Total 314 

 

It has been noted that the pandemic has had an effect on the taxi trade, many 

drivers have left the local trade and have not renewed their licences. Two 

private hire businesses went bankrupt and a number of drivers decided to 

retire. 

3.2.3 Licensing Officers respond to complaints of service and carry out proactive 

inspections of vehicles as demonstrated by the table below showing the 

number of times taxi rank inspections were undertaken, numbers of proposed 

new vehicles checked before applications made, numbers of applications 

determined by committee and complaints received .The reduction in activity 

seen in 2020/21 was due to the Covid pandemic. 

Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing 2018/2019 

Service Requests 5 

Licensing Hearings 2 

Taxi Rank Inspections 12 

Vehicle inspections at Hub 14 

Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing 2019/2020 

Service Requests 8 

Licensing Hearings 1 

Taxi Rank Inspections 10 

Vehicle inspections at Hub 15 

Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing 2020/2021 

Service Requests 10 

Licensing Hearings 0 

Taxi Rank Inspections 1 

Vehicle inspections at Hub 2 

 

3.2.4 The table below shows the total service costs for the last three financial years. 

Financial Year  Budget Actual Variance 

Page 8



06/16 

2018/2019 9,590 11,861     -2,271 

2019/2020 14,097 16,905 -2,808 

2020/2021 29,020 36,186 -7,166 

 

3.2.5  We aim to set fees to cover costs and are mindful of the impact any increase 

has on the trade and the table below shows license fee income for this service 

in 2020/21. The final row of the table shows the total net expenditure for the 

service as reflected in table above. 

Taxi Licensing Income Budget Actual Variance 

Licence Fees (Driver & DBS check) -10,710 -1,277 -9,433 

Licence Fees (Hackney Vehicle) -14,990 -17,179 2,189 

Licence Fees (Private Hire Operator) -500 -1760 1,260 

Licence Fees (Private Hire Vehicle) -8,400 -5,620 -2,780 

Revenue Income 2021 -34,600 -25,836 -8,764 

Net Expenditure 29,020 36,186 -7,166 

 

3.2.6 The overall cost of the service to the Council in 2020/21 was £7,166 and was 

a significant increase in costs on previous years due to a reduction in income 

for taxi licensing for drivers during 2020/21. The reduction in income is due to 

several factors but mainly due the fact that during the Covid pandemic many 

taxis and private hire drivers surrendered their licences and some businesses 

have deferred renewals to when things pick up. There have also been no new 

driver applications during this period in comparison to other years.  

3.3 Licensing Act 2005 Performance Parameters 

3.3.1  A number of different licenses are issued by the Licensing Authority (Hinckley 

and Bosworth Borough Council) under the Licensing Act 2005. The table 

below shows the main licences and permits that we issue. 

 

Main Licence Types – LA 2003   Current Licences 

Premises Licence 385 

Club Premises Certificate 29 

Personal Licence 1488 

Page 9



06/16 

Total  1902 

Total Temporary Event Notices (TEN) Issued 3019 

 

3.3.2 The service carry out a number of pro-active and reactive inspections each 

year under the Licensing Act 2005 as well as assisting in determining 

applications by sub-committee and responding to service requests regarding  

complaints. The table below illustrates these activities over the past 3 years 

with a reduction in activity seen in 2020/21 due to the Covid pandemic. 

Licensing Act 2003 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 

Pro-active premises inspections 228 226 31 

Re-active premises inspections 15 10 1 

Total 243 183 31 

Licensing Inspections in Rural Areas 54 63 2 

Service Requests 12 10 8 

Applications Heard by Sub-Committee 4 8 0 

 

3.3.3 The table below shows the total service costs for previous three financial 

years. 

Financial Year  Budget Actual Variance 

2018/2019 45,230 66,519 -21,289 

2019/2020 79,760 76,680 1,080 

2020/2021 85,630 91,363 -5,733 

 

3.3.4  Licence fees under the Licensing Act 2005 are set nationally under statute, 

the table below shows the income for all permits and licences for 2020/21. 

Licensing Act 2003 Budget Actual Variance 

Premises Licence Fees -66,510 -68,005 1,495 

Personal Licence Fees -3,000 -2,055 -945 

Temporary Event Notice -3,000 -609 -2,391 

Revenue Income 2021 -72,510 -70,669 -1,841 

Page 10



06/16 

Net Expenditure 85,630 91,363 -5,733 

 

3.1.5  The overall cost of this service to the Council was £5,733 in 2020/21 with the 

main loss of Licensing Act 2003 income being a result of the significant 

reduction in temporary event notices due to the fact that occasional events 

have mainly been prohibited under the Covid-19 restrictions and a lack of 

interest from people wanting to enter the sector due to uncertainty. Many 

pubs, cafes and bars have had to remain closed or had restricted opening. 

Licensing Fees are also statutory and therefore there is no scope for 

increasing income to cover costs. 

3.4.1 Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 Performance Parameters 

The table below shows the type and number of scrap metal dealers licences 

that are currently active in the Borough. 

Main Licence Types    Current Licences 

Scrap Metal Site licence 9 

Scrap Metal Collectors Licence  3 

Total  12 

 

3.4.2  The service carry out a number of pro-active and reactive inspections each 

year as seen in the table below with a reduction in activity seen in 2020/21 

due to the Covid pandemic 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 

Pro-active site inspections 7 4 1 

Re-active site inspections 2 3 1 

Total 9 7 2 

 

3.4.3 Unlike other licensing service areas there is no expenditure cost centre for 

Scrap Metal Licenses. At the time of the legislation coming into force it was 

reasoned that officers would spend a small percentage of their time working 

on this area of licensing and that it did not justify its own cost centre with 

associated salary, transport, supplies and services and central and admin 

expenditure costs. 

Page 11



06/16 

The table below shows the income for the last two financial years with 

2019/20 being the year when the majority of licence holders renewed their 

three year licences. 

SMDA 2013 - Financial Year Budget Actual Variance 

2019/2020 0 -2240 2240 

2020/2021 0 -550 550 

Revenue Income 2021 0 -550 0 

 

The reduction in income has been the result of several businesses no longer 

trading due to a number of factors.  

3.5.1  Tattooists and Skin Piercers Performance Parameters 

The table below demonstrates the number of applications processed over the 
past 5 years and total income generated: 

 

Year 2017/2018 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* 

Number of 
Premises 
Registration 
Applications 

8 6 10 4 21 

Premises 
Registration 
Fee 

£130 £135 £135 £135 £135 

Number of 
Person 
Registration 
Applications 

8 7 14 5 26 

Person 
Registration 
Fee 

£83 £83 £88 £90.10 £90.10 

Total Income 
from 
Registrations  

£1,704 £1,391 £2582 £990.50 £5,177.60 

  
*To 31 October 2021 

 
Currently there are 83 tattooing/ skin piercing premises registered with the 
Council. 

 
3.5.2 In the past 5 years to date, the service have received few complaints 

concerning Tattooing/ Skin Piercing premises as seen in the table below. 
 
 
 

Page 12



06/16 

Year 2017/2018 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* 

Number of 
Complaints 
received  

7 
( 3 allegations of 

underage tattooing; 
3 relating to 

hygiene practices; 
1 alleging Female 
Genital Mutilation 

1 0 0 0 

*At 31 0ctober 2021 

 
4. Exemptions in accordance with the Access to Information procedure 

rules 
 
4.1 This report is to be taken in open session  

 
5. Financial implications [MT] 

 
5.1 None 

 
6. Legal implications [MR]  

 
6.1 Set out in the report 

 
7. Corporate Plan implications 

 
7.1 Effective licensing and enforcement services help contribute towards the Councils 

priority ambitions of helping people to stay healthy and protected from harm along 
with encouraging growth, attracting business, improving skills and supporting 
regeneration. 

  
8. Consultation 

 
8.1 None 

 
9. Risk implications 

 
9.1 It is the council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks 

which may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 

9.2 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 
remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion 
based on the information available, that the significant risks associated with 
this decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in 
place to manage them effectively. 
 

9.3 The following significant risks associated with this report/decisions were 
identified from this assessment.  The same risks are present with or without 
adoption of the procedure; but a written procedure based on expert advice 
demonstrates a robust procedure for the enforcement of the notice. 

 

Page 13



06/16 

Management of significant (Net Red) Risks 

Risk Description Mitigating actions Owner 
Reputation from negative press 
coverage from enforcement 

Ensure enforcement carried 
out competently and 
proportionately and in 
accordance with 
Enforcement Policies 

Steven 
Merry   

Knowledge and skills of staff Ensure adequate training 
given to enforcement staff 

Steven 
Merry  

Adequate staff to deal with 
enquiries/enforcement activities 

Ensure appropriate staff 
resources available to deal 
with demands of service 

Steven 
Merry  

Legal compliance Ensure actions in compliance 
with HSE/ Central 
Government Policy 

Steven 
Merry  

 
10. Knowing your community – equality and rural implications 

 
10.1 No implications as licensing and enforcement activity is carried out consistently for all 

premises across the whole Borough. 
 
11. Climate implications 
 
11.1 It is not considered that there are no climate implications from this report. 
 
12. Corporate implications 
 
12.1 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into 

account: 
 

- Community safety implications 
- Environmental implications 
- ICT implications 
- Asset management implications 
- Procurement implications 
- Human resources implications 
- Planning implications 
- Data protection implications 
- Voluntary sector 

 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Contact officer:  Mark Brymer – Principal Licensing Officer Ext 5645 
 Steven Merry – Environmental Services Manager Ext 5735 
 
Executive member:  Councillor MB Cartwright 

 
 

 

Page 14



06/16 

Appendix 1  

 Gambling Act 2005 

1.1 The Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) consolidated and updated previous 

gambling legislation, creating a framework for three different types of 

gambling: gaming, betting and lotteries. Gambling can take the form of non-

remote gambling, which takes place in a gambling premises, and remote 

gambling, which is typically undertaken by phone or online. The Gambling 

Commission enforces remote gambling. 

 The responsibility for regulatory activity on gambling is split between the local 

authority and the national regulator, the Gambling Commission. The 

Commission issues licences to gambling operators and individuals and issues 

guidance to local authorities as to how we should exercise our powers under 

the legislation. The Commission can impose conditions on operators, develop 

codes of practice and investigate claims of illegal gambling or any breaches of 

the requirement of the legislation.  

 Under the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 Hinckley & Bosworth Borough 

Council is the Licensing Authority for the administration and enforcement of 

‘gambling’, defined as betting, gaming and participating in a lottery. The 

licensing authority is responsible for issuing premises licenses to casinos, 

betting offices, race tracks, bingo clubs, adult gaming facilities and family 

entertainment centres where children are allowed. The local authority also 

issue permits for gaming machines and small society lotteries. 

1.2 The Licensing Authority and types of gambling 

 Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council is responsible for:  

 setting the local framework for gambling through our statement of 

principles 

 considering applications and issuing licences for premises where gambling 

takes place 

 reviewing or revoking premises licences 

 issuing permits  

 under taking inspection and enforcement activities. 

 Although betting shops are the most commonly recognised gambling 

premises, we are responsible for overseeing gambling in many different types 

of business: 

 betting shops 

 bingo halls 

 adult gaming centres 

 family entertainment centres (FECs) 

Page 15



06/16 

 casinos 

 race-courses and other tracks (defined as sporting venues, e.g. football or 

rugby stadiums) 

 alcohol licensed premises and clubs that have gaming (‘fruit’) machines 

members’ clubs with gaming permits. 

1.3 Inspection activity and visits 

In line with the principles of better regulation, the Council, Gambling 

Commission and operators work together in partnership. 

Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council working with the Gambling 

Commission, via the Leicestershire Licensing Forum and Leicestershire Local 

Economic Partnership, developed a range of templates to help authorities 

when they visit gambling premises: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-

licensingauthorities/Licensing-authority-toolkit/Premises-

assessments/Premisesassessments-templates.aspx .The templates were 

rolled out throughout England & Wales via the Gambling Commission who 

encourage all authorities to make use of the templates. 

The issues that licensing authorities may cover during their visits include: 

 details of training policies and training undertaken by staff 

 records of refusals to serve /admit on age grounds (subject to the terms of 

any primary authority agreements) 

 records of any relevant incidents in or outside the premises, e.g. anti-

social behaviour 

 approach to managing self-exclusion and numbers of people currently self-

excluded 

 involvement/impact of any work in local schemes or partnership working 

with other local businesses 

 reviewing paperwork relating to the purchase of games from licensed 

manufacturers 

 interviews with staff members 

 confirming that appropriate signage is in place. 

There are now five betting shops and one adult gaming centre licensed by the 

Council. 

We carry out pro-active compliance inspections to all the gambling premises 

in the borough. We liaise with the Gambling Commission over issues in 

relation to gambling premises and work closely with the commission 

compliance manager and we have carried out several joint visits with 

gambling commission and HMRC over the years. 

The Licensing Officer also carries out visits to alcohol licensed premises 

under the Licensing Act 2003, whilst carrying out the visits we confirm that the 

Page 16

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensingauthorities/Licensing-authority-toolkit/Premises-assessments/Premisesassessments-templates.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensingauthorities/Licensing-authority-toolkit/Premises-assessments/Premisesassessments-templates.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensingauthorities/Licensing-authority-toolkit/Premises-assessments/Premisesassessments-templates.aspx


06/16 

premises has the correct number of gaming machines in relation to its 

notification or permit as recorded on our register and we have given out 

guidance on the gaming machine code of practice to licensees. 

To date there has been a high level of compliance, the only issues that have 

arisen on occasion is where the machines are located on the premises. We 

always advise that the bar staff have a clear line of sight so that they are able 

to monitor the machines to ensure that under 18’s are not playing on them 

and that they are not being tampered with. 

1.4  Enforcement  

As in other areas of regulatory services, in developing our enforcement 

strategy, we have adopted ‘better regulation’ approach that recognises the 

requirements of the statutory regulator’s code and applies the principles of 

proportionality and transparency, particularly in terms of consultation and 

engagement with businesses. 

1.5 The Policy – Statement of Principles 

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires that the Licensing Authority 

prepare and publish a statement of principles every three years. The 

statement of principles is required to clearly place the promotion of the 

licensing objectives of the Act as central to its purpose. These are: 

 Preventing gambling from being used as a source of crime or, being 

associated with crime and disorder or used to support crime; 

 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling. 

The statement is produced in consultation with persons and bodies stipulated 

by the Act, these are: 

 Chief Officer of Police for the authority's area; 

 Persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of gambling 

businesses in the area; 

 Persons who appear likely to represent or have interests likely to be 

affected by the exercise of the authority's functions under the Act. 

In determining its policy the authority must have regard to the guidance and 

give appropriate weight to representations made with regard to: 

 Interest and expertise of person making the representation; 

 The motivation of those making representations; 

 How many people have expressed similar views; 

 How far representations relate to matters that should be included in the 

policy. 

Page 17



06/16 

The sixth edition of the Borough Council’s Statement of Principles was 

adopted by the Council in October 2021. 

1.6 Fees 

Licensing fees should cover the costs of gambling licensing administration 

and the compliance/enforcement activity undertaken by the council. Councils 

have a range of licensing tools that can be used to address issues linked to 

gambling premises, specifically reviewing existing licences, imposing 

conditions or – in the most serious cases – revoking licences. 

Unlike fees for alcohol licences under the Licensing Act 2003, licensing 

authorities have some discretion to set premises licence fees. Councils have 

devolved powers to set fees for premises licence applications and annual fees 

up to a prescribed maximum fee. The Licensing authority has delegated 

responsibility for setting fees to the Licensing Committee. 

As with other licensing fees, we have set our fees on the basis of cost 

recovery, so that the income received from fees is ‘as nearly as possible’ 

equal to the cost to the authority of administering the Act. 

Licensing fees will be reviewed in 2022 to ensure that income from licensing 

fees does not exceed the costs of administering the Act.  

Licensing authorities can set fees in relation to the different types of gambling 

premises licence, and within each class, may set: 

 an application fee 

 an annual fee; as the first annual fee is payable 30 days after a licence is 

issued, the council has a discretion to set a lower first annual fee to reflect 

that checks will recently have been made as part of the application 

process. 

A first/annual fee for a premises licence and fees to: 

 notify a change of circumstance 

 apply to vary a licence 

 apply to transfer a licence 

 apply for a copy of a licence 

 apply for reinstatement of a licence 

The costs that the licensing authority includes within our licensing fees, in 

relation to applications are any costs associated with the licensing authority of 

receiving, considering and determining the application, including: 

 staff costs 

 overheads, IT, legal and other central support costs 

 initial inspections 

Page 18



06/16 

 the cost of hearings and appeals. 

In relation to annual fees, our fees cover: 

 regulatory compliance and enforcement costs for the forthcoming year 

(e.g. inspection, holding reviews and enforcement activity);  

 

 the costs associated with processing the annual fee (e.g. updating 

computer systems, register of gambling premises licences and processing 

fee) 

 

 Annualised periodic costs incurred by the licensing authority in respect of 

our three year licensing policy statement. 

Each year have processed the premises licence annual fees; this is a 

predominantly administrative function. The collection of the fees has never 

been problematic, because the legislation allows us to revoke a licence for the 

non-payment of the annual fee (s193). 

1.7  Role of councillors and the licensing authority 

The licensing authority’s responsibilities are delegated to the authority’s 

licensing committee. 

The licensing committee is responsible for considering and proposing the 

authority’s gambling policy through developing the statement of principles 

prior to its approval by full council, and for taking decisions on specific licence 

applications or issues. 

However, two core functions are not delegated and remain the responsibility 

of the full council: 

 a resolution not to issue casino premises licences 

 adopting the licensing statement of principles (policy) 

Fee-setting has been delegated to the licensing committee. 

Decision-making in respect of individual cases, whether applications for 

licences or relating to existing licences, may be further delegated from the 

licensing committee to a sub-committee, or to an officer as detailed in the 

Councils Statement of Principles and scheme of delegations. 

1.8  Decision making and conditions 

In circumstances where the committee or subcommittee considers specific 

cases, it sits as a quasi-judicial body and therefore must follow the rules of 

natural justice – anyone affected by a decision has a right to be heard and no 

one should be a judge in his own cause. All decisions should be made without 

‘fear or favour’, however difficult they may be. 

Page 19



06/16 

In general, the volumes of applications and cases dealt with in respect of the 

Act are significantly less than in relation to alcohol or taxi licensing. However, 

in broad terms, committees have similar options available to them when 

considering an application/issue relating to a gambling premises as they do in 

relation to alcohol licences and taxis: 

 to grant a licence, with or without conditions, or refuse it 

 when reviewing a licence 

 do nothing 

 introduce conditions on a premises licence 

 revoke a licence. 

Licensing authorities may attach specific conditions to premises licences, in 

addition to the mandatory and default conditions that apply either because 

they are set out in the Act or in regulations made by the Secretary of State. In 

relation to an individual premises, they may also choose to dis-apply default 

conditions set out in regulations which would otherwise apply to all premises 

licences. 

 

 

  

Page 20



06/16 

Appendix 2 

Taxi Licensing Overview 

2.1 Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) legislation is primarily concentrated in the 

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (the 1847 Act) and the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (the 1976 Act). The legislation provides a 

broad framework for the licensing of drivers, vehicles and operators, but the 

detail of how this is done, including standards and conditions, is the 

responsibility of the council (‘licensing authorities’). There are a number of 

other Acts which also have an impact; for example the Equalities Act 2010, 

which places a duty on councils to take steps to meet the needs of disabled 

people where these are different from the needs of other people, and enables 

regulations to improve disabled access to taxis.  

 Taxi licensing legislation is widely regarded as outdated and has not 

adequately kept pace with developments in technology and the need to 

ensure passengers are protected. In 2011 the Department for Transport (DfT) 

invited the Law Commission to undertake a review of taxi and PHV licensing. 

The Commission’s 2014 report included a draft Bill with a comprehensive set 

of proposals to completely update and replace taxi and PHV legislation, 

although these recommendations were not taken forward.  

 Five years later an independent working group put forward a number 

recommendations to the Government in February 2019 for a safer and more 

robust system. The Government issued a response to the report accepting 

many of the group’s recommendations as well as committing to bringing 

forward legislation, when time allows, to introduce national minimum 

standards for taxi and PHV licensing, national enforcement powers and a 

national licensing database.  

 At the current time, the Government has yet to bring forward new legislation. 

Instead, it has introduced new statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards 

which we must adhere to. 

2.2 Terminology 

Taxis are referred to in legislation, regulation and common language as 

‘hackney carriages’, ‘black cabs’ and ‘cabs’. Private hire vehicles (PHVs) 

include a range of vehicles such as minicabs, executive cars, limousines and 

chauffeur services.  

Councils are responsible for the licensing of vehicles which carry up to a 

maximum of eight passengers. Vehicles with a seating capacity of more than 

eight passenger seats, which can include some stretch limousines, are 

licensed by the Traffic Commissioners, who are appointed by the Transport 

Secretary. 

Page 21



06/16 

One of the key differences between the vehicles is that a PHV, unlike a taxi, 

cannot ply for hire, which means that all journeys must be pre-booked in 

advance through a licensed operator. 

2.3 The Councils role in Taxi Licensing 

Taxi and PHV licensing in England and Wales is undertaken by the licensing 

authority (borough council), we have the responsibility for ensuring the public 

travel in safe, well maintained vehicles driven by competent drivers, as well as 

providing a fair and reasonable service for the taxi and PHV trade. 

The delivery of our core functions in taxi and PHV licensing can be 

summarised as: 

 Setting the local framework, which can include safeguarding standards, 

fares, vehicles standards or limits on vehicle numbers. 

 Considering applications and safeguarding the public by issuing, 

reviewing, or revoking licenses. 

 Undertaking inspection and enforcement activities to ensure the required 

standards are being maintained. 

Taxi and private hire licensing is undertaken within the regulatory services of 

environmental health and is also combined with other licensing functions. The 

committee overseeing decisions is referred to as the Licensing Committee. 

In providing the licensing function, the council, under the provisions of the 

1976 Act, is entitled to levy fees to recover the reasonable cost associated 

with: 

 recovering the costs of the issue and administration of drivers’ licences 

 the inspection of vehicles for the purposes of determining whether any 

such licence should be granted or renewed 

 the provision of hackney carriage stands 

 any administrative or other costs in connection with the control and 

supervision of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. 

Except for drivers’ licences, the council is required to consult upon the fees it 

intends to levy through a public notice procedure.  

There are no statutory timescales or performance measures for taxi/PHV 

licensing, unlike some other licensing regimes. However, we use internal 

performance indicators to measure the service being provided to applicants 

and licensees. And periodically we review of the licensing service’s processes 

and procedures can help to improve this. Where all paperwork is in order we 

have succeeded in reducing the time taken to process vehicle licences down 

to just two working days pre-pandemic.  

 

Page 22



06/16 

2.4  Strengths and weaknesses of the current system  

The Council have a wide range of powers that can be used to regulate taxis 

and PHVs, protecting the public and supporting local economies; but there are 

also some anomalies within the existing system. 

The Council have the power to attach conditions to the licences of operators, 

taxis (vehicles), PHVs, and PHV drivers, but not the licences of taxi drivers.  

Out of area working has increased significantly partly due to new app-based 

models which make it easier for individuals to book a PHV that is licensed 

elsewhere. As well as varying driver and vehicle standards, another key issue 

for councils is the limited enforcement powers we have to take action against 

PHVs that are licensed by another authority.   

First and foremost, we have no ability to stop vehicles, which leaves us only 

able to intervene when a vehicle is stationary, and unable to prevent it being 

driven off – only the police may stop a vehicle. 

Secondly, we may only take action against a vehicle or driver that it has 

licensed, meaning that there is absolutely nothing that we can do if a vehicle 

or driver licensed elsewhere is operating in our area, other than complain to 

the ‘home’ authority. Hopefully this will be addressed in future legislation. 

We are currently reviewing our taxi licensing policy that will bring together all 

procedures including policies on convictions, determining the ‘fit and proper’ 

person test, licence conditions and vehicle standards. This will help with the 

government’s plan to introduce more consistency in line with proposed 

national statutory standards and to help deliver the best possible licensing 

regulation. We will take account of the views of the trade, customers, and 

other stakeholders when establishing the policy. 

2.5  Who reaches taxi licensing decisions? 

Decision-making in respect of individual cases, whether applications for 

licences or where matters are brought to the attention of the council following 

the grant of a licence (for example breach of conditions, convictions, driving 

endorsements, etc.), are often made by the licensing sub-committee. This sits 

as a quasi-judicial body and therefore must follow the rules of natural justice – 

anyone affected by a decision has a right to be heard and no one should be a 

judge in his own cause. All decisions should be made without ‘fear or favour’, 

however difficult they may be. 

Decision-making in some cases is also delegated to officers and is an 

important tool where a serious offence is committed, and immediate 

revocation is needed.  

Page 23



06/16 

Both new applicants seeking licences and the holders of existing licences will 

have the right of appeal to the local magistrates’ court if they are aggrieved by 

a decision of the council. 

Councillors making decisions should have knowledge from member training 

which covers licensing procedures, hearings, the rules of natural justice, 

understanding the risks of child sexual exploitation, county lines and disability 

equality. 

2.6 Licensing authority responsibilities 

A licensing authority must not grant a taxi or PHV driver’s licence unless it is 

satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence. 

This is very different to the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005, where 

the presumption is to permit a licence application. 

Properly applying the ‘fit and proper’ person test is essential for ensuring a 

robust licensing scheme that protects safety and commands the confidence of 

the general public. 

On receiving an application, we first check the applicant’s right to work. This 

ensures that applications are not heard where the applicant has no legal right 

to work in the UK and is a requirement of the Immigration Act 2016. 

Once this is established, an inquiry into an applicant’s fitness to be licensed 

includes enquiries into their medical health to a Group 2 standard (HGV 

Driver), a local knowledge test, and understanding of the responsibilities of a 

licensed driver as well as passing a driving assessment test and an enhanced 

criminal record check. 

The licensing history of an applicant is an important factor to consider, and it 

will always be relevant for us to consider a previous refusal or revocation, and 

the reasons for that decision. Whilst every application must always be 

considered on its own merits, a previous decision may in many cases warrant 

significant weight to be given to it.  

Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council as a member of the National Anti-

Fraud Network (NAFN) and has access to the National Register of Taxi 

Licence Revocations and Refusals (NR3) which was launched in 2019, this 

provides a mechanism for us to record details of any taxi or PHV drivers’ 

licence that we have refused or revoked, and allows to check new applicants 

against the register. The objective of NR3 is to ensure that authorities can 

take properly informed decisions on whether an applicant is fit and proper, in 

the knowledge that another authority has previously reached a negative view 

on the same applicant. Previously, if drivers did not disclose information about 

a previous revocation or refusal of a licence, there was often no way for us to 

find this information out. 

Page 24



06/16 

2.7 Public protection, partnership working and information sharing 

Effective partnership working between the local authority, the Driver and 

Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA), police, trading standards and the local 

trade, is vital to ensure effective taxi and PHV regulation. 

One of the reasons for joint enforcement operations with the police is that taxi 

licensing officers do not have powers to stop and search vehicles. Similarly, 

licensing officers may only take action against drivers and vehicles that they 

have licensed, which is why the issue of cross-border usage can be so 

problematic. 

2.8 Environmental Issues  

In 2017, the government published the UK plan for tackling roadside nitrogen 

dioxide concentrations followed by a supplement in 2018 (together “the plan”). 

The plan identified local authorities in England showing exceedances which 

have been required to carry out feasibility studies and if necessary, develop 

bespoke plans to bring roadside concentrations of nitrogen dioxide within 

legal limits in the shortest possible time. 

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 2019 were introduced which puts the onus on all licensing 

authorities to provide information on all vehicles operating as taxis and private 

hire vehicles (PHVs) registered by the authority. This information is uploaded 

on a weekly basis to DEFRA.  

The Council receives an annual payment of £ 580.00 as payment for 

providing the information to help to alleviate the additional administrative 

burden. 

New hackney carriage vehicle licence plates will be granted to vehicles that 

are either wheelchair accessible or ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEV). This is 

to: 

 To promote the Equality Act 2010 as there is a shortage of wheelchair 

accessible vehicles in the current taxi fleet. 

 

 The council has declared a climate emergency and so we are encouraging 

the local taxi trade to embrace new technology and help the borough 

become carbon neutral by 2030. 

2.9 Upcoming Changes 

The Finance Act 2021 introduced the principle of ‘conditionality’ and from April 

2022 the council will also be required to undertake new tax checks. HMRC 

has now published information on Gov.UK to help licensees and licensing 

bodies to prepare for new checks. This will be a new addition to the checks 

Page 25



06/16 

that we already have in place and it will need to be completed when people 

are renewing their licences to:  

• drive taxis or private hire vehicles   

• operate private hire vehicle businesses    

We have recently written to all members of the trade and sent them guidance 

and factsheets on what to do and how to prepare for the changes as well as 

invite to a webinar that the institute of licensing have organised for all 

stakeholders. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



06/16 

Appendix 3 

The Licensing Act 2003 

3.1 Background 

The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) replaced earlier controls of alcohol and 

introduced a more permissive, flexible regime. The Act consolidated a diverse 

system of licences that had been separately issued for late-night refreshment 

and regulated entertainment. Before the Act, alcohol licences had been 

issued in Magistrates’ courts through what was largely an administrative 

procedure, and licensees had to formally attend to get their licences renewed 

every three years. 

The intention of the Act was to liberalise a previously rigid licensing system. 

The Act gave licensing authorities (district, unitary and metropolitan borough 

councils) new powers over licensed premises, as well as giving local people 

more of a say in licensing decisions. A fundamental, and at the time 

controversial, part of the new Act was the potential to extend licensing hours 

beyond the previous ‘permitted hours’, in the hope that this would bring about 

more of a ‘cafe culture’. 

The Act was widely welcomed by local authorities, licensees and the police 

and in many respects, the Licensing Act remains a positive model for a 

licensing system. It has a clear set of objectives, it allows local decision-

making, it has a clear appeals process and there are opportunities for 

everyone affected by the licence to make comments on it. 

Licensing makes a fundamental contribution to how our communities develop, 

live, work and relax. There is a broad spectrum of licenced premises, 

including off-licences, supermarkets and cafes as well as the pubs, bars and 

clubs that typically make up the night time economy. Research estimates that 

the alcohol industry contributes £46 billion a year to national income and is 

responsible for around 2.5 per cent of all UK employment. At a local level, a 

vibrant and mixed night time economy can encourage tourism, boost the local 

economy and contribute to shaping places where people want to live. 

3.2 Licensing objectives and aims 

The objective of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) is to provide a clear, 

transparent framework for making decisions about applications by individuals 

or businesses wishing to sell or supply alcohol, or provide certain types of 

regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. 

The Act is administered by the borough council as the licensing authority. 

Under the Act, the licensing authority’s responsibilities are delegated to the 

licensing committee. The licensing committee is responsible for considering 

Page 27



06/16 

and proposing the authority’s statement of licensing policy, and for taking 

decisions on specific licence applications or issues. 

There are four licensing objectives which underpin the Act and which need to 

be taken into account and promoted throughout the licensing process. Each of 

these objectives is of equal weight. 

The licensing objectives are: 

1. the prevention of crime and disorder 

2. public safety 

3. the prevention of public nuisance 

4. the protection of children from harm. 

Licensing authorities must issue a licence, providing it is consistent with the 

licensing objectives and there have been no comments on the application or 

objections to it, which are known as representations. The Act enables scrutiny 

of applications both by experts, local residents and businesses who all have 

the opportunity to comment on an application. 

There are some organisations, known as responsible authorities (RAs), which 

need to be notified of every application for a new premises licence, or 

variation of an existing licence. RAs can make representations to the council 

about applications where they feel there will be a negative impact on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives if the application were to be approved. 

RAs include the police, fire authority, trading standards, health and safety, 

environmental health, and planning amongst others. 

Anyone who may be affected by an application for a new licence or variation 

to an existing licence can make a representation. However, in order for a 

representation to be deemed ‘relevant’ it needs to relate to the likely effect of 

the application on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Section 182 of the Act required the Home Office to issue Guidance to local 

authorities on our functions under the Act. From the outset the Guidance has 

made clear that “the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 

consideration at all times”, but ministers have stressed that the legislation 

“also supports a number of key aims and purposes” which (in the latest 

version of the Guidance) include: 

 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour 

and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises; 

o giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to 

effectively manage and police the night-time economy and take 

action against those premises that are causing problems; 

Page 28



06/16 

o recognising the important role which licensed premises play in our 

local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, 

and supporting responsible premises; 

o providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the 

needs of local communities and empowers local authorities to make 

and enforce decisions about the most appropriate licensing 

strategies for their local area; and 

o encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions 

and giving local residents the opportunity to have their say 

regarding licensing decisions that may affect them. 

The Guidance states that these aims “are vitally important and should be 

principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work”. Since it has statutory 

force, the aims cannot be departed from without good reason. 

3.3 Licensable activities 

There are a number of different activities that were brought together under the 

Act which are referred to in legislation as ‘licensable activities’. 

Licensable activities are:  

 the sale of alcohol by retail 

 the supply of alcohol in qualifying members’ clubs 

 the provision of regulated entertainment 

 the provision of hot food and hot drink (‘late night refreshment’) to the 

public between 11.00 pm and 5.00 am. 

The distinction between the sale and supply of alcohol is made in recognition 

of the fact that at a member’s club there is technically no sale taking place as 

members of the club already own the assets of the club, including the alcohol. 

Regulated entertainment is arguably a less well known part of councils’ 

licensing responsibilities. To count as regulated entertainment, the activity 

must be provided in front of an audience for the purpose of entertaining them 

and must fit into one of the following categories: 

 it is provided for members of the public (anybody can buy a ticket or come 

to the event) 

 it is exclusively for members of a (private) qualifying club and their guests 

 it is arranged by someone who is trying to make a profit.  

There are certain forms of entertainment that are always regulated, for 

example entertainment provided to over 500 people (or over 1000 people for 

indoors sporting events), entertainment provided between 11.00 pm and 5.00 

am and boxing and wrestling. 

Regulated entertainment is defined as (subject to exemptions):  

Page 29



06/16 

 live amplified and unamplified music 

 recorded music 

 exhibition of film 

 performances of plays 

 indoor sports 

 boxing and wrestling. 

There are however a number of activities that are exempt under the Act from 

needing a licence, such as the sale of alcohol in an aircraft. Reforms since the 

Act originally came into force in 2005 mean that a number of activities no 

longer need to be licensed in particular circumstances, for example the 

performance of live music to a limited audience. A full list of exemptions can 

be found in the Home Office National Guidance. 

3.4 Premises 

The types of premises affected by the Act include: 

 Public spaces such as market squares, village greens or open fields 

 Concert halls, theatres and cinemas 

 Restaurants, public houses and bars 

 Hotels, and some guest houses and B&Bs 

 Nightclubs, casinos and bingo halls 

 Canteens retailing alcohol 

 Supermarkets selling alcohol 

 Shops, convenience stores and garages retailing alcohol 

 Non-profit making clubs 

 Village, church and community halls 

 Indoor sports complexes staging sports entertainments 

 Outdoor venues staging boxing and wrestling entertainments 

 Late night cafés and takeaways (including vehicles, vessels and movable 

structures). 

3.5 Licences 

Personal licences authorise individuals to sell or supply alcohol, or authorise 

the sale or supply of alcohol, for consumption on or off premises for which a 

relevant premises licence is in force. A personal licence is not required where 

the licensable activities are confined to entertainment or late night 

refreshment. 

Premises licences set out the operating conditions relating to the use of the 

premises for licensable activities, in order to regulate the use of the premises 

in line with the licensing objectives. They will vary according to the risks 

individual premises present to the promotion of the four objectives. Under the 

previous licensing regime an applicant for a licence had to satisfy a demand 

test.  

Page 30



06/16 

One of the main changes made by the Licensing Act 2003 was that this test 

was removed. Under the Act an application for a licence has to be granted if 

no one makes a relevant representation, and grounds for refusal are limited to 

reasons based on the licensing objectives. 

A premises licence has effect until the licence is revoked or surrendered, but 

otherwise is not time limited unless the applicant requests a licence for a 

limited period. Under the Licensing Act 1964 as originally enacted a licence 

had to be renewed every year, and although this was subsequently extended 

to three years, the indefinite continuation of a premises licence was another 

significant change made by the 2003 Act. 

Any person may make representations about an application for the grant of a 

premises licence, or about a variation or review. Most commonly these will be 

local residents and businesses, but there is no longer a “vicinity” test, so those 

living further afield but with an interest may also make representations. The 

responsible authorities which most commonly make representations are the 

police and environmental health, and the local authority itself. Such 

representations must concern “the likely effect of the grant … on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives” or, in the case of a review, must be 

“relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives”—a lower test. Once the 

licence has been granted the same classes of persons and bodies may seek 

a review of the premises licence and the conditions attaching to it if problems 

occur which present a risk to the licensing objectives. 

3.6 Role of Designated Premises Supervisor 

Each licensed premises must have a DPS, the person named on the 

premises licence as the individual designated to supervise the premises; they 

must always be a personal licence holder. The DPS will be the single point of 

contact for responsible authorities, particularly the police and licensing 

authority. They also have responsibility to make sure licensable activities are 

carried out lawfully in the premises, although they are not required to be on 

the premises at all times. 

There can only be one DPS in relation to each premises, although the same 

personal licence holder could be the DPS for several premises. The DPS may 

also be the, or one of the, premises licence holders. 

It is a breach of a mandatory condition for alcohol to be sold without a DPS 

being named on the licence. There are routine procedures in place for a DPS 

to be replaced, for example when changing their job. A DPS may be removed 

following a licence review; the police may object to an incoming DPS on the 

grounds that they would undermine the crime prevention objective. 

Page 31



06/16 

Premises that are run as community facilities such as village halls may apply 

to remove the requirement to have a DPS, making the management 

committee collectively responsible for the supervision of alcohol sales instead. 

3.7 Club premises certificates 

Club premises certificates provide authorisation for qualifying clubs to use 

club premises for qualifying club activities. Such clubs tend to be, for example, 

political clubs, sports clubs, ex-services clubs, working men’s clubs and social 

clubs with at least 25 members. The qualifying club activities are a subset of 

the licensable activities: the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a 

member of the club, the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a 

guest of a member for consumption on the premises, and the provision of 

regulated entertainment by or on behalf of a club for its members and guests.  

As with premises licences, the right to make representations on the 

application for a club premises certificate is given to a range of persons and 

bodies.  

3.8  Temporary event notices (“TENs”) 

The 2003 Act established new arrangements for the carrying on of licensable 

activities at occasional or temporary events. These arrangements replace the 

multiple systems of “occasional permissions” and “occasional licences” which 

applied to the old alcohol and entertainment regimes.  

3.9  Reviews of licences and closure powers 

The Act allows interested parties and responsible authorities to ask the 

licensing authority to review premises licences and certificates if problems 

arise in relation to a licensing objective. Licensing authorities have the power, 

on review of a premises licence or certificate, to suspend or revoke the 

licence, to exclude specific licensable activities from the licence, to modify 

operating conditions attaching to the licence, and to require the removal of the 

designated premises supervisor. 

Closure Notices can be issued by a police officer of at least the rank of 

superintendent, or a designated Licensing Officer of a local authority, a 

closure notice that lasts for up to 48 hours. 

When a closure notice is issued, the police or local authority must apply to the 

magistrates’ court for a closure order. The magistrates’ court must hear the 

application for the closure order within 48 hours and can make a closure order 

for a maximum period of three months. Unlike the closure notice, a closure 

order can prohibit access to anyone, including the landlord, owner or habitual 

residents. 

Page 32



06/16 

The powers on licence reviews and closures are among the most difficult that 

the licensing committee have to exercise.  

3.10 Early Morning Restriction Orders 

Early Morning Restrictions Orders (EMROs) are powers brought in by the 

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, allowing local authorities to 

issue a blanket ban on premises opening during a period beginning at or after 

midnight and ending at or before 6am. They can be applied on particular days 

of the week, or different time periods on different days of the week, and can 

be applied to the whole or any particular part of a local authority area. 

3.11  Late Night Levies 

The Late Night Levy (LNL) was introduced by the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibility Act 2011, and provides licensing authorities with the power to 

raise money from late-opening alcohol suppliers to go towards policing and 

managing the NTE. If a local authority chooses to introduce a LNL, it must be 

applied across the entire local authority area, although the local authority can 

choose the period between midnight and 6am to which it will apply. 

Since their creation, only nine of 350 local authorities in England and Wales 

have introduced a LNL, while 13 others issued consultations about the 

introduction of a LNL, but did not subsequently introduce one. 

Both early morning restrictions orders and the late night levy have been 

discussed and considered by the Licensing Committee in 2012 and 2015.  

3.12 Licence Fees strengths and weaknesses of the current system 

In many respects, the Licensing Act 2003 is a positive model for a licensing 

system. It has a clear set of objectives, it allows local decision-making, it has 

a clear appeals process and there are opportunities for everyone affected by 

a licence to make comments on it. 

Used creatively, licensing can be a tool to shape the places that communities 

live, work and socialise in and can help manage concerns. 

However, concerns were raised by councils through the LGA about some 

weaknesses in the Act. Firstly, that the implementation of the Act has been 

consistently undermined by a lack of resourcing due to the centrally-set fee 

system.  Licensing fees, which are set nationally have remained unchanged 

since 2005.  

Premises and club premises certificate fees are based on the rateable value 

of the premises. Premises with higher rateable values that are primarily being 

used for alcohol sales pay additional premiums as do premises with 

particularly large capacities (in excess of 5000 people).  

Page 33



06/16 

Fees are also set for a range of other administrative processes under the Act, 

such as: 

 varying a licence 

 transferring a licence from one individual to another 

 varying the DPS (the person named on the premises licence as the 

individual designated to supervise the premises) 

 Notice of Interest (Usually by a third party owner of a property) 

 Provisional Statement (Application based solely on plans not a physical 

building) 

 Change of name and address 

 Copy of Licence 

 Theft or loss of a licence 

 Interim Authority Notice ( Following the death of a licence holder) 

 temporary event notice (TEN). 

Councils have argued that the fees underestimate the costs councils incur in 

overseeing the Act, and should be set locally. There have been various 

reviews and consultations around the localisation of fees over the last 16 

years, and in 2015, the Government asked the LGA to work with it to develop 

an evidence base on the costs to councils of overseeing the Act. 

The LGA’s view is that locally set fees would re-dress the imbalance in fee 

incomes and whilst locally set fees might increase fees in some places, in 

others there may be decreases. Local fees could also benefit businesses, for 

example if there was a reduced annual fee. 

Government has indicated that a new fee structure may be re-considered at 

some point in the future. 

3.13 Developing the statement of licensing policy 

Under the Act, licensing authorities are required to prepare a statement of 

licensing policy (SLP) which sets out how licensable activities will be 

regulated and how licensing functions will be exercised in their areas, as well 

as expectations of licence holders and operators. The policy can be used to 

identify areas where the risk of harm may be greater due to the characteristics 

of a particular area, and how these risks can be mitigated. 

The SLP is an opportunity to take a strategic look across all of the licensable 

activities within your area and set out a vision for them. The decisions made 

can enhance an area’s economy, public health, safety and cultural appeal to 

tourists and visitors from surrounding areas. 

Getting the statement of licensing policy right is important as this guides the 

local authority’s decision making. We must have regard to our SLP when 

carrying out licensing functions as the policy acts as a starting point for a 

Page 34



06/16 

decision. Whilst we can depart from our policy when considering applications, 

there will need to be good reasons for doing so. 

The SLP should set out how licensees can contribute to creating the evening 

and night time economy that the council envisages, for example encouraging 

certain types of applications in certain areas, for example food led 

businesses. It is also an opportunity to set out the context in terms of specific 

local issues that licensees should consider for example areas of saturation in 

a town centre, and how they can contribute towards positively addressing 

them. 

The SLP takes on additional significance in the event that an applicant 

challenges or appeals the sub-committee’s decision. At this point the 

Magistrates court will adopt the licensing authority’s policy as if it were its’ 

own. 

3.14 Planning 

The licensing and planning systems operate independently with the planning 

and licensing regimes involving consideration of different, albeit related, 

matters. Planning is the regime that is directed at development of land and the 

use of premises upon it. Licensing is the regime that is directed at licensable 

activities and responsible management of said premises upon that land. 

Licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by a planning 

committee, and vice versa. For example, a premises licence or club premises 

certificate cannot be refused on the grounds that they do not have planning 

permission. Licensing authorities are also able to specify different opening 

hours on the licence from those specified under planning permission. This is 

somewhat incongruous, but the two schemes take different matters into 

account when determining hours, and the more restrictive set of hours always 

applies. 

Nevertheless, where applicants have indicated that they have also applied for 

planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing officers do discuss 

the application with our planning service prior to determination with the aim of 

agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours. It is also important to note that 

any decision of the licensing authority on an application for a premises licence 

does not relieve the premises user of any requirements under planning law for 

appropriate planning permission where it is required. Premises operating in 

breach of their planning permission would be liable to prosecution under 

planning law. 

 

 

 

Page 35



06/16 

3.15  Partnership Working (Pubwatch) 

Creating a safe, vibrant and diverse night time economy is in everyone’s 

interests and the police, council, emergency services, local businesses and 

the community all play a role to achieving this. 

Partnership schemes involving the trade such as pubwatch is an effective 

network of licensees working together to combat crime, disorder, and anti-

social behaviour in our towns and villages. There has been a pubwatch 

running in Hinckley since February 2004 which was formed by Officers in 

licensing, town centre manager, the local police licensing sergeant and a 

leading town centre publican. 

Hinckley pubwatch now includes licensees from Burbage, Earl Shilton and 

Barwell who attend the meeting and works as a successful partnership. 

3.16 Purple Flag 

Purple Flag is an accreditation process similar to the Green Flag award for 

parks and the Blue Flag for beaches. It leads to Purple Flag status for town & 

city centres that meet or surpass the standards of excellence in managing the 

evening and night time economy (ENTE). 

It is a positive initiative that indicates an entertaining, diverse, safe and 

enjoyable night out throughout the UK and Ireland and now being taken up 

internationally. 

Town centres that achieve a Purple Flag are those that are safe, diverse, 

vibrant, appealing, well-managed and offer a positive experience to 

consumers. Purple Flag is the only UK scheme focused on the ENTE that 

sees it in the round; both the negative impacts that need to be addressed and 

the potential for economic growth, increased conviviality and community 

enhancement. 

Licensing are working together with community safety, the police and Hinckley 

BID and we are intending on submitting an application in 2022. 

3.17 Role of councillors 

Licensing committees/sub-committees 

Membership of the licensing committee is prescribed within the Act, and 

should consist of at least 10, but no more 15 councillors we currently have 11 

members in our committee. The licensing committee has delegated the 

majority of its responsibilities to licensing sub-committees, the sub-

committees must consist of three members of the main committee in order for 

decisions to be made with proper authority. The sub-committee does not need 

political balance and can also be appointed outside of full council.  

Page 36



06/16 

The sub-committee’s primary role is to consider whether a licence application 

is likely to undermine one or more of the licensing objectives in the light of any 

relevant representations that may have been made about it. These 

considerations will be made at a hearing. 

Licensing hearings, are convened when a sub-committee is required to 

consider a contested application, must be held within strict timescales which 

are set out in statutory regulations. 

The day-to-day administration is carried out by our licensing officers and a 

shared environmental health administration team. 

The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) is a permissive regime. This means that 

licences must be granted if they have been made in accordance with statutory 

requirements and in the absence of any relevant representations. 

3.18 Role of responsible authorities 

Overview 

Responsible authorities (RAs) are statutory bodies which are able to comment 

on applications made under the Act. They can make representations about 

the grant, full variation, transfer and review of premises licences as well as 

those for regulated entertainment which are not exempt, and can also apply 

for licence reviews in their own right. 

The responsible authorities are: 

 the licensing authority itself 

 the chief officer of police 

 the fire and rescue authority 

 the body responsible for enforcing health and safety at work  

 the local planning authority 

 environmental health 

 the body designated by the local authority for the prevention of children 

from harm  

 trading standards 

 the director of public health  

 with regard to a vessel – the Environment Agency, the Maritime and 

Coastguard Agency 

 Home Office Immigration Enforcement. 

Police 

The police are one of the primary partners in managing the licensed economy 

and gather considerable information about the operation of premises through 

their policing of the area. Consequently, the police are generally the most 

proactive of the responsible authorities in liaising with applicants and licence-

Page 37



06/16 

holders, making representations about licences and seeking reviews of 

licences. 

In April 2017, a mandatory requirement was introduced for police forces in 

England and Wales to begin systematically recording alcohol-related crime. 

They are required to apply a ‘flag’ to their recorded crime data, for crimes 

where alcohol is perceived as an aggravating factor.  

This data informs licensing and policy decisions at a local level, provided it is 

of sufficient quality. The police have a key role in managing the night time 

economy and should usually be the main source of advice on matters relating 

to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any 

responsible authority under the Act may make representations with regards to 

any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such 

representations. 

A licensing committee must actually consider all relevant representations 

carefully, including crime numbers and other evidence presented by the 

police, as this may well include examples that do not relate to the licensable 

activity: several licensing decisions have been overturned on appeal as a 

consequence of this. 

The partnership with the police extends outside of the licensing process and 

related enforcement and the police are a key player in Pub Watch.  

We liaise with the police on almost a daily basis and now meet weekly to 

discuss issues over the previous seven days, we also undertake joint 

inspections with local police officer with licensing responsibilities. 

Police officers have specific powers in the Act in relation to: 

 serving a closure notice on problem premises (either within an area or 

specific premises) where there is crime, disorder or nuisance 

 calling for a review or summary review of a licence 

 objecting to the transfer of a premises licence 

 objecting to a change of Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

 objecting to a personal licence application if the applicant has relevant 

current convictions or after a licensing authority has decided not to revoke 

a personal licence 

 objecting to a temporary event notice 

 exercising powers of entry to licensed premises if they suspect offences 

under the Act are being committed. 

 

 

 

Page 38



06/16 

Public health 

One of the primary reasons for including the director of public health (DPH) as 

a responsible authority is that public health may have access to information 

that is unavailable to other responsible authorities. 

The role of the DPH is to help promote the health and wellbeing of the local 

populations they serve. This is an expansive remit that influences a wide 

range of circumstances, including local licensing arrangements. Similarly the 

licensing regime is concerned with the promotion of the licensing objectives, 

which collectively seek to protect the quality of life for those who live and work 

in the vicinity of licensed premises and those who socialise in licensed 

premises. This focus on the wellbeing of the wider community via licensing is 

an important addition to public health teams’ existing work to promote the 

wellbeing in their localities. 

Public health representations must be assessed in the same way as evidence 

from any other responsible authority. It can be more challenging for them to 

make representations as there is no specific health objective, but is entirely 

possible and a number of public health teams have made successful 

representations – either in their own right or in support of other responsible 

authorities. 

Environmental health 

Environmental health plays a significant role in addressing potential nuisance 

and safety issues associated with licensed premises, such as music noise, 

dispersal noise from patrons, intrusive odours and general safety. 

Environmental health officers (EHOs) will frequently discuss conditions with 

applicants such as proposed sound control or mitigation measures and health 

and safety issues. EHOs can consider ‘public nuisance’ in relation to licensed 

premises, which is a broader and more flexible term than the specific 

’statutory nuisance’ in relation to unlicensed premises. 

Statutory guidance warns against using the Licensing Act when other more 

specific legislative powers are available. The Health and Safety at Work etc. 

Act 1974 and food hygiene regulations therefore would be used by EHOs to 

secure workplace and food safety rather than licensing conditions. 

Along with the police, environmental health can object to temporary event 

notices which other RAs are unable to do. 

Trading standards 

Weights and measures authorities (trading standards) have a specific duty 

under the Act to enforce the under-age alcohol sales provisions. They have a 

specific power to conduct test purchase operations and will often organise 

Page 39



06/16 

age-related product sales training and awareness for businesses and their 

remit is primarily ‘Off-licensed premises’. 

Trading standards may issue fixed penalty notices following an under-age 

sale, and issue a notice preventing alcohol sales from taking place for up to 

seven days following two or more failed test purchases within three months. 

Trading standards may also apply for reviews where there is evidence of 

offences on licensed premises such as copyright infringement, the sale of 

counterfeit cigarettes or other goods. 

Fire service 

Although in practise the fire service very seldom make representations, their 

representations on public safety grounds means licensing sub-committees 

have to effectively either reject the application or reject the representation. 

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 does not allow fire-safety 

related conditions to be applied to a licence. It can be useful to remind 

applicants of their duties under the Fire Safety Order, i.e. that they need to 

carry out a fire risk assessment and implement findings. Applicants can be 

signposted to the government’s guidance on completing fire risk 

assessments. 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement (HOIE) are the most recent addition to 

the list of responsible authorities following changes brought in by the 

Immigration Act 2016 which requires all licence holders to have the right to 

live and work in the UK. HOIE can make representations about the grant, full 

variation, transfer and review of premises licences for the sale of alcohol 

and/or late right refreshment, and can apply for licence reviews in their own 

right. They can also make representations for personal licence applications. 

Licensing authority 

The licensing authority administers and enforces the Act, but we can also 

make representations about applications or call for reviews. Crucially we act 

as a coordination point between the different interests associated with 

licensable activities and premises. The statutory guidance suggests that there 

should be a separation between the licensing authority officers processing an 

application and those acting in its role as a responsible authority intending to 

make representations.   

3.19  Responding to issues at licensed premises 

It is good practice for council officers and responsible authorities to give 

licensee’s early warning of any concerns or issues relating to the licensing 

Page 40



06/16 

objectives that are linked to the premises and to offer advice on the need for 

improvement. 

A graduated approach consisting of advice, warnings, and the use of action 

plans or statutory notices is sometimes appropriate depending on the nature 

and severity of the concern. 

Where there is a failure to respond to warnings or where concerns are 

particularly serious we can be asked to review a licence. It is important to note 

that the vast majority of licenced premises are responsible businesses and 

reviews are relatively rare, however the committee have recently heard three 

applications for licence reviews. 

3.20 Reviews 

A review functions as a safeguard or ‘check and balance’ for communities in 

the case where problems associated with the licensing objectives are 

occurring once a licence has been granted, or varied. 

There are four types of reviews which licensing authorities can use depending 

on the circumstances relating to the request. These are: 

 a standard review 

 a summary/expedited review 

 a review following a closure order 

 a review following a compliance order made under the Immigration Act. 

For the purpose of this report our focus is on the standard review which can 

relate to the failure to promote licensing objectives, or a breach of conditions. 

A responsible authority, residents, businesses or councillors, indeed anyone 

may seek a review of a premises licence and, in the case of a club premises 

certificate, that includes the members of the club. This can be done at any 

point following the grant or variation of a licence or certificate.  

The review process includes a 28-day consultation process to allow for public 

engagement. In a similar way to a hearing, any relevant material can be 

considered by the sub-committee and the party applying for the review has to 

persuade the subcommittee the licensing objectives are being undermined. 

The primary purpose of a review is to act as a deterrent to prevent further 

breaches. It can also prevent any licensable activities which are causing 

concern from happening in future. 

There are a range of options open to a subcommittee: 

 to modify or add conditions, including reducing hours 

 change management – remove the DPS 

Page 41



06/16 

 suspend all or any of the licensable activities for up to three months 

 revoke the licence. 

Any of these steps needs to be shown to be appropriate and proportionate. 

Clearly revocation is the most serious of these and will need careful 

consideration. In some cases, reviews result in the modification or addition of 

conditions to the licence. 

In certain circumstances the police have the power to apply to a Magistrate’s 

Court for a Closure Order, these should not be used lightly and should only be 

sought where necessary to prevent disorder. Following the making of a 

Closure Order the licensing authority must complete a review of the Premises 

Licence within 28 days. The Home Office issues separate guidance around 

police powers to close premises. 

There have been thirteen applications for a review of a premises licence since 

the Act was implemented resulting in five revocations, three suspensions of 

premises licences, two removals of the DPS and two premises that had 

additional conditions added and one premises had licensable activities 

removed from the licence. 

Summary reviews 

Summary reviews can be made by the police (a police superintendent or 

above) where premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder. 

This would typically be involving violence or money laundering. The Home 

Office issues guidance which includes issues to take into consideration. 

Summary reviews are fast track reviews within 28 days with the power to 

impose interim steps within 48 hours of the application pending a full review 

hearing. Interim steps could be modifying conditions, ceasing the sale of 

alcohol, removing the DPS or suspending a licence. 

These are very much a last resort and not a routine step. 

 Prosecution 

Either before or in conjunction with a review officers may also consider using 

other statutory powers, including commencing a prosecution. 

Prosecutions must relate to a specific breach of licence condition or specific 

offence under the Act with each element of the offence needing to be proved 

beyond reasonable doubt. Prosecutions can only be commenced by a 

responsible authority and must be started within 12 months of discovery of the 

offence. 

The purpose of a prosecution is punitive and for licensing offences a review 

(with the threat of revocation or suspension) can often be more of a deterrent. 

Page 42



06/16 

Range of options open to the court: 

 unlimited fine 

 imprisonment for up to six months (or suspended sentence) 

 forfeit or suspend a personal licence where the defendant is a personal 

licence holder. 

In practice, a case can take a significant amount of time to come to court – if 

there are issues with the promotion of the licensing objectives which can’t be 

resolved amicably, then review is likely to be the most appropriate response. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



06/16 

Appendix 4 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

4.1 Background 

The Act was introduced to tackle a rise in scrap metal thefts across the whole 

of the U.K. The Home Office estimated that there were 100,000 reported 

metal theft offences in 2010/11 alone and is costing the economy up to an 

estimated £260 million per year. A wide range of sectors have been hit 

including national transport, electricity and telephone links, street furniture, 

memorials, commercial and residential building including churches and 

schools. 

The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 was introduced delivering much needed 

reform of the scrap metal sector. The Act provides effective and proportionate 

regulation, creating a more robust local authority run, licensing regime that will 

support legitimate dealers and provides the powers to effectively tackle 

unscrupulous operators.  

The Act allows us the Council to decide who should and should not be 

licensed, allowing us to refuse a licence upon application or to revoke a 

licence at any time if we are not satisfied that the applicant is a suitable 

person to carry on business as a Scrap Metal Dealer. The act also creates 

closure powers for unscrupulous dealers who operate without a licence.  

It extends the record keeping requirements placed upon scrap metal dealers 

and requires the verification of the people Scrap Metal Dealers are transacting 

with.  

Finally, the 2013 Act creates a fee raising power, to allow local authorities to 

recover the costs stemming from administering and seeking compliance with 

the regime.  

4.2  What is a scrap metal dealer? 
 

The Act defines a scrap metal dealer as a person who is for the time being 

carrying on a business as a scrap metal dealer, whether or not authorised by 

a licence. It states that scrap metal includes: 

 any old waste or discarded metal or metallic material and 

 any product, article or assembly which is made form or contains metal and 

is broken, worn out or regarded by its last holder as having reached the 

end of its useful life. 

But it does not include gold, silver; and any alloy of which 2% or more by 

weight is attributable to gold or silver. 

Page 44



06/16 

4.3 Licences 

In order for anyone to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer they must 

obtain a licence. The licence will be valid for three years and trading without a 

licence is a criminal offence, there are two types of licence specified in the 

Act. 

Site licence  

An individual may hold more than one licence issued by different local 

authorities, but may not hold more than one licence issued by any one 

authority. 

A Site Licence authorises the licensee to carry on a business at any site in the 

authority’s area which is identified in the licence and must: 

 name the licensee; 

 name the authority; 

 identify all the sites in the authority’s area at which the licensee is 

authorised to carry on business; 

 name the site manager of each site; and 

 state the date on which the licence is due to expire. 

A site licence holder can transport scrap metal from third party businesses 

by arrangement from any other local authority area providing it is in the 

course of the business from that site.  

A site licence holder cannot regularly engage in collecting waste materials   

old, broken, worn out or defaced articles by means of visits from door to door 

in the area they are licensed or elsewhere, as this would constitute carrying 

on a business as a mobile collector.  

It would be acceptable to collect by arrangement, for instance where a motor 

salvage operator is asked to transport a damaged vehicle from an address to 

their site. 

If a site licence holder uses self-employed mobile collectors to collect scrap 

metal which will be processed by the site, each collector will need a mobile 

collector’s licence.  

When the Act was implemented there were thirteen sites licensed in Hinckley 

& Bosworth Borough and now in 2021 there are nine. 

Collector’s licence  

A Collector’s Licence authorises the licensee to carry on business as a mobile 

collector in the authority’s area only and must: 

 name the licensee; 

Page 45



06/16 

 name the authority; and 

 state the date on which the licence is due to expire. 

A separate collector’s licence is needed for each council area that a mobile 

collector collects scrap metal. A mobile collector can dispose of or sell scrap 

metal in any local council area regardless of whether a collector’s licence is 

held for that area. 

A mobile collector will need a licence to buy or sell any scrap metal collected. 

Even if the material is provided free of charge, a licence is required in order to 

sell it on as, the definition of a scrap metal dealer in this Act includes any 

person who “carries on a business which consists wholly or partly in buying or 

selling scrap metal.” 

A mobile collector's licence will cover any employees working for that 

business. If they are not employed directly by that mobile collector’s business 

and are self-employed, they will need their own collector’s licence even if they 

are collecting metal from the same van as a person who has a mobile 

collector’s licence.  

Mobile collectors and site licence holders need to ensure they comply with 

relevant environmental legislation and regulation when carrying out their 

business. 

In 2013 there were eighteen licensed collectors and now in 2021 there are 

three. The majority of collectors did not renew their licences’ after 2016. 

4.4 Objections to Licence Applications 

The Police may object to a licence application where they believe that the 

applicant is not a suitable person. The local authority, having considered the 

Police objections and having considered all other information must decide 

whether we will issue a licence. If we decide not to issue a licence we must 

allow the applicant the right to make either oral or written representations. 

In order to ensure that the application process is open and transparent all 

representations are heard by a ‘Licensing Sub-Committee’ which would be 

made up of three members from Licensing Committee. It is anticipated that 

the hearings would be managed is a similar way to Licensing Act hearings, 

where Members hear representations from all parties involved before making 

a decision. 

There is a right of appeal to the Magistrate’s Court against the decision to 

refuse a licence application, to include a condition within the licence, to revoke 

the licence or to vary the licence. 

4.5 Application fees 

Page 46



06/16 

In setting our fees we have taken into account:  

 all the activity required with processing and granting a licence such as 

considering applications and assessing the suitability of the applicant   

 staff costs associated with supporting the service, 

 support provided by other parts of the council to the licensing team such 

as legal services and any other associated recharges,  

 the cost of providing advice and guidance to applicants on what will be a 

new process 

 carrying out inspections and ensuring compliance with the law  

 training for staff and councillors in the requirements of the new legislation  

 costs associated with consulting other agencies and bodies when 

considering if an applicant is a suitable person  

 making and reviewing any policies in relation to the operation of the new 

licensing regime  

 issuing the licence  

 Invoicing costs 

 any officer time spent providing information for inclusion in the register of 

dealers.  

In assessing the costs of any hearings where the applicant makes oral 

representations to the local authority, councils will have to have regard to:  

 the cost of communicating with the applicant and any representatives they 

have  

 how much it costs to prepare and issue the notice setting out what the 

council proposes to do as required by paragraph 7(1) in Schedule 1 

 what costs are incurred in preparing the report to the Committee 

 the cost of printing and sending out the agendas, legal services costs and 

any legal advice the committee needs  

 officer costs associated with actually running the hearing.  

When looking at enforcement costs we have to bear in mind that they must be 

based on the principles of good regulation, and they have to be set in an open 

and transparent way. An important point is that the fees cannot be used to 

pay for enforcement action against unlicensed dealers (particularly collectors) 

or as an economic deterrent or to raise funds.  

4.6 Licensing Policy 

There is no statutory requirement for a local authority to have a formal Scrap 

Metal Dealers policy; however, it was thought beneficial to write such a policy. 

This was for the benefit of business owners as well as reassuring the general 

public and other public bodies. It also reinforces the Regulators Code when 

dealing with applications by promoting effective practice, and ensuring 

proportionate, consistent and targeted activity, whilst developing an 

Page 47



06/16 

understanding between regulators and those we regulate. Hinckley & 

Bosworth Borough Council adopted the policy in May 2021. 

4.7 Compliance and Powers of Entry & Inspection 

The Local Authority can determine who should be licensed and who is not 
suitable and have the power to: 

 refuse an application. 

 revoke a licence at any time if we are not satisfied that a dealer is a 
suitable person to carry on a business as a scrap metal dealer. 

 
Authorised officers have power of entry to licensed sites by giving notice to 
the site manager and also without giving notice where reasonable attempts to 
organise a mutual date have failed. We are able to investigate whether the 
premises is being used as a scrap metal site and must be allowed to enter 
and inspect the premises and records at all reasonable times.  

 
Authorised officers have powers to close an unlicensed site trading without a 
licence using a closure notice. The Local Authority implements a ‘stepped 
approach’ to compliance, inspections and enforcement in relation to scrap 
metal dealers seeking compliance in the first instance for low level offences or 
breaches in line with the licensing compliance and enforcement policy. We 
have served two closure notices on separate sites with the most recent being 
in 2020. 

  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 48



06/16 

Appendix 5 

 Tattooists and Skin Piercers 

5.1 It is recognised that Tattooing and body piercing have become increasingly 
popular and fashionable in recent years, however the practice has a well-
established history. Ensuring practitioners follow safe working practices has 
therefore been an important enforcement service for Environmental Health for 
many years, ensuring protection of both clients and the practitioners 
themselves. Improper and unhygienic practice may result in localised skin 
infections at the site of the tattoo or piercing. There is also the risk of 
transmission of blood-borne viruses, for example Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, 
Hepatitis D or HIV, which can have more serious and long term health 
consequences. It is therefore important that practitioners have safe working 
practices, and particularly that good infection control practices are followed at 
all times, so that both clients and practitioners are protected. It is also 
recognised that in the sector there are currently no nationally recognised or 
accredited training courses, standards for practice, agreed knowledge and 
skills frameworks or arrangements for monitoring and reporting of professional 
competence. 

 
5.2 Legislation 
 

The use of legislation in this area of activity is primarily to ensure that infection 
control arrangements are adequate and effectively carried out. Currently the 
only primary means of enforcing infection control arrangements is by use of 
registration provisions, as there is no licensing provisions for this activity 
available to this Council; and application of local byelaws. These are 
prescriptive methods with offences and penalties for noncompliance. The 
registration and byelaws provisions are largely concerned with setting 
requirements for good standards by requiring the maintenance of established 
hygiene controls in respect of premises, equipment, procedures and 
practices. However, there are additional controls contained in primary 
legislation that do contain provisions for the immediate prohibition of activities 
or persons or for the closure of premises where risk of infection can be 
demonstrated. The legislation relating to tattooing and skin piercing activities 
can therefore be broadly split into two main areas: 

 
• Specific controls by registration of premises and people carrying   out the 
activities, and 
 
• General controls of activities through primary legislation that is not specific to 
particular activities but applies to all of them. 

 
Specific Legislation 

 
The Council has adopted through The Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 the requirement for the registration of both the premises 
and the practitioners themselves on the practices of acupuncture, tattooing, 
ear piercing or electrolysis, with bylaws also regulating these particular 

Page 49



06/16 

activities for the purpose of ensuring proper infection control measures 
through:  

 The cleanliness of premises and fittings in such premises; 

 The cleanliness of persons and 

 The cleansing and, so far as is appropriate, the sterilisation of 
instruments, materials and equipment used in connection with the 
practices. 

 
The Council must issue a registration if the application has been properly 
made and a registration can only be refused where a person has previously 
had a registration cancelled by a Magistrate for a conviction for the offences 
of: 

    
• Carrying on the business of acupuncture, tattooing, ear piercing or 

electrolysis without being registered, punishable through a fine on the 
Standard Scale of Level 3 currently £1,000. 

• Contravening any bylaws made under the Act, punishable through a 
fine on the Standard Scale of Level 3 currently £1,000. 

• Failing to display a copy of the registration and bylaws at the premises, 
punishable through a fine on the Standard Scale of Level 2 currently 
£500. 

 
An exemption from the registration requirements applies to practices carried 
out by or under the supervision of a person who is registered as a medical 
practitioner. Local authority officers can be authorised to enter any premises 
where they have reason to believe any of the three offences above are being 
committed, but where entry is refused the authority of a warrant issued by a 
Justice of the Peace has to be obtained. 

 

General controls 
 
Several pieces of primary legislation imposing infection control requirements 
in relation to all skin piercing activities apply across the country for use by 
local authorities without the need for adoption.  

 
The Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 (HASWA74) applies to all persons 
engaged in tattooing and skin piercing activities for gain or reward. This 
includes peripatetic workers who carry out treatments in the client’s home, 
although only the Health & Safety Executive have powers in relation to 
peripatetic workers. The Act imposes on all employers a general duty of care 
to ensure the health, safety and welfare of their employees and on both 
employers and self-employed persons a general duty of care to ensure their 
activities do not expose them or the general public to risks to their health or 
safety.  

 
Under HASWA74 legislation businesses are also required to carry out risk 
assessment of those work activities that could cause harm to people and take 
appropriate precautions to prevent that harm arising, including infection 
prevention and control measures. The Control of Substances Hazardous to 
Health Regulations 2002 also requires specific risk assessment is carried out 

Page 50



06/16 

for work with substances hazardous to health, including biological agents 
such as organisms which can cause diseases transmitted by unhygienic 
practices.  

 
The requirements of HASWA74 are enforceable through improvement and 
prohibition notices. Improvement notices give a time limit for compliance with 
requirements. Prohibition notices can have the effect of immediately stopping 
the operations of a business or the activities of a person where imminent risk 
is apparent. All offences under HASWA74 are punishable by unlimited fines 
and prison sentences, so they provide a substantial inducement for business 
to comply with requirements. The use of health and safety legislation is 
governed by substantial amounts of regulatory guidance and approved codes 
of practice. However, none of this relates specifically to skin piercing and 
therefore, regulatory officers need to use their skills of risk assessment within 
an infection control setting. 

 
There is also national legislation under the Public Health (Control of Disease) 
Act 1984 giving local authority powers to protect public health where voluntary 
cooperation to avert a health risk cannot be secured and where other 
methods of control are ineffective, unsuitable or disproportionate to the risk 
involved. Although these powers are very extensive, there are stringent 
criteria for their use and safeguards for people who might be affected by 
them. Before making use of these powers, the local authority or Justice of the 
Peace must be satisfied that the conditions relating to a particular threat to 
health are met. The criteria cover evidence of infection or contamination, 
assessment of the potential for significant harm to human health, risk of 
spread to others and necessity for action to be taken in order to reduce or 
remove that risk.  

 
Age Limits and Consent 

 
The need for limits on age, and requirements for consent, can be a 
controversial area because in many circumstances specific requirements 
have not been made in law. Consent is a complex area of law, and one that is 
often misunderstood by the general public, and also some skin piercing 
practitioners. 

 
The Tattooing of Minors Act 1969 imposes a statutory minimum age of 18 
years for permanent tattooing (except when carried out for medical reasons 
by a duly qualified medical practitioner or by a person working under their 
direction). The practitioner has a defence if they can show that they had good 
reason to believe that the person was over 18 years of age. The consent of a 
client under 18 is not a defence. The Police enforce this legislation and fines 
are up to Level 3 on the Standard Scale (currently £1000). 

 
There is no statutory minimum age for any other form of skin piercing activity. 
Ear piercing, and nose piercing, is generally considered acceptable when 
carried out on a minor, even below the age of five, provided that a parent or 
legal guardian gives consent and is present whilst the procedure is carried 
out. Under the Sexual Offences Act 1956, girls and boys under the age of 16 

Page 51



06/16 

cannot legally give consent to intimate sexual contact under any 
circumstances, so piercing of nipples and genitalia (for girls) or genitalia (for 
boys) can be regarded as an assault offence. The Female Genital Mutilation 
Act 2003 states that certain procedures in respect of female genitals is illegal 
unless carried out for medical reasons. 

 

5.3 Enforcement  
 

Applications for registration with the Council from tattooists or skin piercers 
can be made online or through an application form with accompanying 
registration fees which are reviewed each year to ensure they cover the costs 
of the registration process. Currently the fees, which are one off, are £ 135.00 
for the premises registration and £90.10 for the person registration. 

 
Once an application has been received arrangements are made to visit and 
access the premises with our primary focus on infection prevention and 
control during the intervention. Primarily therefore officers check on ensuring 
there is:   

• Good cleanliness of the premises where the tattooing and/or body 
piercing is taking place, and of the fixtures and fittings. 
• Good personal hygiene of the practitioners. 
• Correct cleaning and sterilization or disposal of instruments, materials 
and equipment processes in place. 

 
It is important that safe working practices are followed at all times in order to 
protect both the client and practitioner and therefore when conducting our 
interventions, Officers reference the Tattooing and body piercing guidance 
Toolkit produced by The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health, Public 
Health England, Health and Safety Executive, Tattoo and Piercing Industry 
Union.  

  
Following assessment at this visit, officers will discuss their findings with the 
proprietor and either register the premises or suggest remedial actions, which 
will be checked upon before registration is given. Registration cannot be 
withheld, however it has been found that new operators are keen to follow and 
adopt good practices. 

 
Once the series of these initial visits has concluded a risk assessment on the 
business is conducted, as with all premises for which the Council has the 
responsibility for health and safety enforcement. This risk assessment 
undertaken follows national guidance from the Health and Safety Executive 
`LAC 67/2 v6 (2017) - Setting priorities and Targeting Interventions` and 
evaluates a business’s health and safety performance (i.e. how effective is the 
business at managing any risks it creates) based on four areas of assessment:  

 

 Confidence in management  

 Safety performance  

 Health performance  

Page 52



06/16 

 Welfare compliance  

 
A resultant scoring system will categorise the business into one of four 

categories; A – high risk; B1 and B2 - medium risk and C – low risk.   
 

In recent years the focus of the health and safety regime has moved to a lighter 
touch approach concentrating on higher risk industries and on tackling serious 
breaches of the rules. Consequently the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 
and local authorities have reduced the number of inspections carried out; to 
have greater targeting where proactive inspections continue; and to increase 
information provision to small businesses in a form that is both accessible and 
relevant to their needs. Guidance produced by the HSE through their National 
Local Authority Enforcement Code and Local Au tho r i t y  C i rcu la rs  67 /2 
`Advice/guidance to  loca l  authorities on targeting interventions’ are used 
each and every year to determine this council`s key priorities. These codes 
indicate that local authorities are expected to target proactive inspections 
on high risk activities in specified sectors or on workplaces where intelligence 
suggests that risks are not being effectively managed. Previous years codes 
have indicated that only Category A businesses are targeted for a proactive 
inspection. However, inspections of o t h e r  r i s k  categorised businesses will 
occur if a matter of evident concern is brought to our attention through 
reports of accidents, complaints or other intelligence suggesting the premises 
requires an intervention. A revised risk rated following any additional 
inspections is carried out and may raise the business to an `A` category 
and thereby subject to further proactive inspections until such time as the 
officers have confidence in the businesses performance.     

  
5.4  Possible Future Controls 

At the time of writing this report Parliament were considering a Health and 
Care Bill to improve the safety and regulation of aesthetic non-surgical 
cosmetic procedures. A proposed amendment to the Bill being debated would 
enable the Secretary of State to introduce a licensing scheme for non-surgical 
aesthetic cosmetic procedures. If the amendment was adopted in the Bill a 
new system should help to better regulate cosmetic practitioners, including 
skin piercers and tattooists, to ensure that they have appropriate 
qualifications, competencies and skills to practice safely. 

 
 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



06/16 

 
 
Forward timetable of consultation and decision making 
 
Finance Audit and Performance 17th January 2022   
 
Wards affected:  All  
 
 

FINANCIAL OUTTURN- SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

Report of Section 151 Officer 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 Present the financial outturn position as at September 2021 

 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 The report is noted. 
 
3. Background to the report 
 

3.1 The financial reports attached to this report are based on the Original budget 
taken to Council in February 2021 and take into account budget movements 
for the first nine months. 

 
3.2 Attached to this report are the monthly outturn reports including the following 

information for the period ending September 2021: 
 

 General Fund budget monitoring summary 
 General Fund detailed variance analysis 
 Capital Programme outturn by scheme 

 
General Fund 
 
3.3 Based on the approved budget (Council February 2021) it was anticipated 

that £105,047 would be transferred to balances and a net £379,088 transferred to 

earmarked reserves. Since that date, the budget has been increased by £89,360 

representing supplementary budgets that have been approved in line with financial 

procedures rules. As at the end of September 2021, the forecast is for the General 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



06/16 

Fund cost to increase by £636,360. This means an estimated £531,313 will be 

required from balances compared against the budgeted surplus position of 

£105,047. The single largest item causing this is the position taken on the Leisure 

Centre in relation to support expected for 2021/22. PfP are currently wishing 

continued financial help via a reduced management fee. After lost income 

compensation from Government, this still leaves a £0.4m pressure. We are in 

negotiation with PfP and this may change, if full management fee is secured from 

August 2021 until the March 2022 the year end position will improve. 

 

  Budgeted Forecast  Movement 

Contribution (from)/to General 
Fund Balances (£000) 

105 (531)  (636) 

 
3.4 The table below shows summarises the movements between Original Budget 

and the estimated outturn position as at the end of September 2021.  
 

 Outturn 
variances 

£000 

Explanation 

Additional budgets  (89)  To take into account latest contractual 
commitments 

Forecast Outturn 
Movement 

(532) Estimated forecast variance from services (see 
general fund attachments) 

External Interest (15) Net reduction in investment income.  

Change in Outturn  (636) Contribution (from)/to General Fund Balances 
(£000) 

 
3.5 Explanations for variances against both profiled budget and estimated outturn 

have   been detailed in the monthly outturn reports appended. The major 
service variations in excess of £50,000 have be summarised as follows: 

 

 Outturn 
variances 

£000 

Explanation 

Homelessness (265) Additional Bed and Breakfast due to Covid and an 
increase in demand  

Homelessness 60 Additional Homelessness grant 

Homelessness 100 Additional Benefits and B&B contributions 

Leisure Centre (559) Impact of Covid 19 on Leisure Centre Contract 

Parks (58) Re-phasing of crematorium project 

Covid 19 Funding 669 Additional MHCLG  Funding to cover Covid 
Pressures 

Covid 19 Funding 125 Estimated income from MCHLG for loss of fees and 
charges income 

Miscellaneous 
Property 

(123) Invoices written off relating to the Crescent for 
2020/21 

Legal Services  (90) Additional Agency costs to cover vacant posts 

Page 56



06/16 

Recycling (61) Primary due and higher agency driver costs and 
covid 

Car Parking (128) Shortfall in pay and display income 

 
3.6 The position is dependant upon the Council being reimbursed £125k from 

MHCLG for loss of income compensation arising from Covid 19.  
 
Capital 
 
3.7 £4,878,778 has been spent on capital schemes to the end of September 2021 

against a budget for that period of £11,260,310. It is envisaged that most of 
the schemes will still be completed by year end. Estimated Year-end 
variations above £50,000 are summarised below.   

 

Scheme £000's 
Under spend/ 
(Overspend) 

Explanation 

Clarendon Park 150 3G pitch no longer going ahead new 
scheme to be coordinated.  Funds to be 
carried forward 

 Waterside Open Space 
(SEA) 

50 Awaiting land adoption before Developer 
Contribution can be spent.  Will require a 
carry forward at year end 

 Waterside Play Area 67 Awaiting land adoption before Developer 
Contribution can be spent.  Will require a 
carry forward at year end 

Sports Facility Improvement 
Fund 

360 Budget to be revised when capital 
programme reviewed. External 
Contributions to be passported directly to 
organisations ( not  via the Council) 

Electrical Upgrades/Rewires 100 Lower  than expected replacement 
requirement 

 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
3.8 As at September 2021 it is anticipated that the HRA outturn will be in surplus 

by £158,740 compared against a budgeted surplus of £183,740. Major 
variances are explained below- 

 

 Outturn 
variances 

£000 
Under/(Ov
er) Spend 

Explanation 

   

Employee Costs  (61) Overtime overspend – vacant post and new 
member of staff training (double cover)  

 
 

Page 57



06/16 

3.9 The Housing Repairs Account is currently forecasted to make a surplus of 
£143, which is an underspend of £75,000 compared to the latest budget of 
£74,857. This is due to a predicted underspend for asbestos and legionella 
testing of £15,000 and an anticipated saving of £60,000 primary due to a 
reduction in responsive repairs.  

  
4. Exemptions in accordance with the Access to Information procedure 

rules 
 
4.1 Report taken in open session. 
 
5. Financial implications [IB] 

 
5.1 Contained in the body of the report.  

 
6. Legal implications [MR] 

 
6.1 None 

 
7. Corporate Plan implications 

 
7.1 The Budget and outturn contributes to the achievement of all Corporate Plan 

Priorities. 
 

8. Consultation 
 

8.1 None 
 

9. Risk implications 
 

9.1 It is the council’s policy to proactively identify and manage significant risks 
which may prevent delivery of business objectives. 
 

9.2 It is not possible to eliminate or manage all risks all of the time and risks will 
remain which have not been identified. However, it is the officer’s opinion 
based on the information available, that the significant risks associated with 
this decision / project have been identified, assessed and that controls are in 
place to manage them effectively. 
 

9.3 The following significant risks associated with this report / decisions were 
identified from this assessment: 

 

Page 58



06/16 

Management of significant (Net Red) risks 

Risk description Mitigating actions Owner 

That the Council has insufficient 
resources to meet its aspirations 
and cannot set a balanced budget 

A budget strategy is 
produced to ensure that 
the objectives of the 
budget exercise are 
known throughout the 
organisation.  
The budget is scrutinised 
on an ongoing basis to 
ensure that assumptions 
are robust and reflective 
of financial performance.  
Sufficient levels of 
reserves and balances 
are maintained to ensure 
financial resilience   

Julie 
Kenny 

 
10. Knowing your community – equality and rural implications 

 
10.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report 
 
11. Climate implications 
 
11.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. Budget holders 

ensure any implications are assessed as part of their service delivery. 
 
12. Corporate implications 
 
12.1 By submitting this report, the report author has taken the following into 

account: 
 

- Community Safety implications 
- Environmental implications 
- ICT implications 
- Asset Management implications 
- Procurement implications 
- Human Resources implications 
- Planning implications 
- Data Protection implications 
- Voluntary Sector 

 
 
 
Background papers: Civica Reports 
 
Contact officer:  Ilyas Bham, Accountancy Manager x5924 
Executive member:  Cllr K Lynch 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX  1
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monthly Outturn Reports 
 

For the period April 2021 to September 2021 
     

CONTENTS 
 

 

 PAGE 

 

     General Fund 

 

     Capital Programme 

 

     HRA 

 

  

1-10 

 

11-14 

 

15-17 
 

 

Page 61



September 2021 Budget Monitoring Summary 2021/22

Service

Budget as per Feb 

21 budget Book

Supplementary 

Budgets/virements 

approved to date

Latest Budget used 

for Monitoring 

ledger recharges

Budget per 

Monitoring Report

Estimated 

Outturn 

Variations Estimated Outturn

 

Community Services 2,757,520 189,144 2,946,664 (970,870) 1,975,794 594,000 3,540,664

Corporate Services 2,570,120 2,796,893 5,367,013 (651,640) 4,715,373 (584,000) 4,783,013

Support Services 80,700 202,811 283,511 3,968,470 4,251,981 61,000 344,511
Environment & Planning 8,496,901 152,919 8,649,820 (2,345,960) 6,303,860 461,000 9,110,820
s31 Collection Fund Support 3,826,520 3,826,520 0 3,826,520 3,826,520

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE 17,731,761 3,341,767 21,073,528 0 21,073,528 532,000 21,605,528

Special Expenses (706,360) (11,000) (717,360) 0 (717,360) (717,360)

Capital Accounting (1,405,340) (1,405,340) 0 (1,405,340) (1,405,340)

External Interest - Net 185,200 185,200 0 185,200 15,000 200,200

IAS 19 Adjustment (1,585,970) (1,585,970) 0 (1,585,970) (1,585,970)

Carry Forwards 20/21 to 2021/22 (120,480) (120,480) (120,480) (120,480)

Use of UG&C Reserves 0 (3,018,019) (3,018,019) 0 (3,018,019) (3,018,019)

Transfer to Reserves 660,000 660,000 0 660,000 660,000

Use of Reserves (280,912) (102,908) (383,820) 0 (383,820) (383,820)

Transfer to (From) Future Collection Fund (3,826,520) (3,826,520) (3,826,520) (3,826,520)

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 10,771,859 89,360 10,861,219 0 10,861,219 547,000 11,408,219

Financing

Council Tax 4,665,540 4,665,540 0 4,665,540 4,665,540

National Non-Domestic Rate 4,322,866 4,322,866 0 4,322,866 4,322,866

New Homes Bonus 892,004 892,004 0 892,004 892,004

Collection Fund Surplus 567,087 567,087 0 567,087 567,087

Lower Tier Support Grant 429,409 429,409 429,409 429,409

TOTAL RESOURCES (HBBC BUDGET) 10,876,906 0 10,876,906 0 10,876,906 0 10,876,906

Movement in General Fund Balances 105,047 (89,360) 15,687 0 15,687 (547,000) (531,313)

Special Expenses

Expenditure 706,360 11,000 717,360 0 717,360 0 717,360

Council Tax Income 749,999 0 749,999 0 749,999 0 749,999

Movement in Special Expenses Balances (9,045) 0 32,639 0 32,639 0 32,639

Special Expenses to /(from) Reserves 52,684 0 52,684 0 52,684 0 52,684

Special Expenses mvt in Balances (9,045) 0 (9,045) 0 (9,045) 0 (9,045)

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 749,999 11,000 760,999 0 760,999 0 760,999

Total Movement in Balances 96,002 (89,360) 6,642 0 6,642 (547,000) (540,358)

NBR 11,626,905 100,360 11,622,218 0 11,622,218 547,000 12,169,218

Under/overspend £ £

Mvt to/(from) Balances Orig Budget 105,047

Mvt to/(from) Balances Latest Budget

Mvt to/(from) Balances  Outturn (531,313)

Outturn change 636,360

() = Underspend

Page 1

P
age 62



September 2021 Budget Monitoring Summary 2021/22 - General Fund Services

Budget Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE £17,731,761 £18,298,821 £21,749,018 £21,782,528 £21,605,528

Budget Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

General Fund Balance Contribution £105,047 -£287,013 -£495,813 -£518,313 -£531,313

5

0

1 -1

-18

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE

-£600,000

-£500,000

-£400,000

-£300,000

-£200,000

-£100,000

£0

£100,000

£200,000

General Fund Balance Contribution

Budget

Jun-21

Jul-21

Aug-21

Sep-21

Page 2

P
age 63



September 2021 Main changes in outturn

Budget Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

Support Services £80,700 £339,700 £427,511 £444,511 £344,511

Community Services £2,757,520 £3,390,580 £3,594,664 £3,594,664 £3,540,664

Corporate Services £2,570,120 £1,869,120 £4,768,013 £4,783,013 £4,783,013

Environment and Planning £8,496,901 £8,872,901 £9,132,320 £9,133,820 £9,110,820

General Fund Balance Contribution £13,905,241 £14,472,301 £17,922,508 £17,956,008 £17,779,008

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

£7,000,000

£8,000,000

£9,000,000

£10,000,000

Support Services Community Services Corporate Services Environment and
Planning

Budget

Jun-21

Jul-21

Aug-21

Sep-21

Page 3

P
age 64



List of Supplementary Budgets Approved - 2021/22

Narrative Amount

Community 

Services

Corporate 

Services

Environment 

and Planning

Support 

Services

Domestic Abuse - Purchase of new Ergonomic Chair 1,060 1060

Commissioning of 2 standards Investigations 10,000 10,000

Future operating model - Implementation costs (Agreed at 11th August 2021 council) 58,000 58,000

Bradgate Stables enforcement (Net Cost) - Approved Executive 11th August 2021 5,800 5,800

SLT - New Crematorium - Other Costs 7,000 7,000

Hinckley Area Committee - Proms in the Park Funding 11,000 11,000

Supplementary for County wide  Start Up Business Support Programme Fees 7,500 7,500

100,360 1,060 0 31,300 68,000

Total Budget Movement Year to date 100,360 1,060 0 31,300 68,000

Page 4

P
age 65



General  Fund Service Area 2021/22 Monthly Outturn to September 2021

Estimate to Date Actual to Date
Variance to 

Date

Timing 

Differences

Variance 

excluding 

timing 

Differences

Est 2021/22
Forecast 

Outturn

Forecast 

Variation to 

Year End

Carry 

Forwards
Ref

cm01 Community Services DSO Housing Repairs (437,764) (225,947) (211,817) (212,000) 183 (910,780) (910,780)

cm02 Contribution to Housing Rev Ac 0 0 0 0 22,230 22,230

cm04 Forest Road Garages (2,866) (3,366) 500 500 (5,730) (5,730)

cm05 Homelessness (61,767) (98,586) 36,819 14,000 22,819 96,022 162,022 (66,000) 1.1

cm07 Housing Strategy 512 (40,566) 41,078 41,000 78 11,330 11,330

cm08 Private Sector Housing 14,048 22,971 (8,923) (8,923) 439,240 458,240 (19,000) 1.2

cm09 Children and Young People 8,523 (138) 8,661 8,000 661 23,275 23,275

cm10 CCTV 61,958 53,163 8,795 6,000 2,795 133,580 133,580

cm11 Community Safety 31,515 (173,449) 204,964 177,000 27,964 128,379 113,379 15,000 15,000 1.3

cm12 Creative Communities 11,678 13,293 (1,615) (1,615) 34,520 34,520

cm13 Leisure Centre (262,618) 128,600 (391,218) 84,000 (475,218) (510,510) 34,490 (545,000) 1.4

cm14 Leisure Promotion 12,050 2,027 10,023 8,000 2,023 16,370 16,370

cm15 Sports Development (1,024) (21,816) 20,792 20,792 15,161 30,161 (15,000) 1.5

cm16 Highways Miscellaneous 27,959 97,170 (69,211) (70,000) 789 68,180 68,180

cm17 Markets 17,520 37,479 (19,959) (19,959) 18,750 51,750 (33,000) 1.6

cm19 Climate Change 4,189 1,335 2,854 2,854 4,189 4,189

Community Services Salaries 1,196,260 1,164,247 32,013 32,013 2,391,588 2,322,588 69,000 1.7

Community Services 620,173 956,416 (336,243) 56,000 (392,243) 1,975,794 2,569,794 (594,000) 15,000

cp01 Corporate Services Corporate Management 3,377,790 1,087,781 2,290,009 1,249,000 1,041,009 4,123,403 3,349,403 774,000 2.1

cp02 Corporate Management (Civic) 11,328 6,285 5,043 5,043 23,220 23,220 2.2

cp03 Council Tax / NNDR 73,015 202,893 (129,878) (115,000) (14,878) 286,120 286,120 2.3

cp04 Council Tax Support 44,830 (44,004) 88,834 86,000 2,834 309,480 309,480

cp05 General Grants 43,892 43,759 133 133 109,880 109,880

cp06 Register and Borough Elections 35,930 (595) 36,525 31,000 5,525 93,030 98,030 (5,000) 2.4

cp07 Benefits Fraud and Rent Allowances (87,125) (75,846) (11,279) 79,000 (90,279) (83,230) (43,230) (40,000) 2.5

cp08 Public Conveniences 10,727 10,601 126 126 21,310 21,310

cp09 Industrial Estates (318,054) (274,819) (43,235) (23,000) (20,235) (603,120) (578,120) (25,000) 2.6

cp10 Misc Property (128,424) (106,093) (22,331) 121,000 (143,331) (560,250) (419,250) (141,000) 2.7

Corporate Services Salaries 497,956 475,368 22,588 22,588 995,530 974,530 21,000 2.8

Corporate Services 3,561,865 1,325,329 2,236,536 1,428,000 808,536 4,715,373 4,131,373 584,000 0

cp11 Support Services Asset Management 87,131 84,578 2,553 8,000 (5,447) 171,320 171,320 3.1

cp12 Communications & Promotion 39,694 38,229 1,465 1,465 112,260 112,260

cp13 Council Offices 670,488 662,448 8,040 1,000 7,040 1,307,400 1,307,400 3.2

cp14 Finance Support 86,213 79,441 6,772 6,000 772 268,410 268,410

cp15 Health and Safety 6,524 5,715 809 809 20,200 20,200

cp16 I.T. Support 521,798 644,114 (122,316) (103,000) (19,316) 1,195,461 1,195,461 3.3

cp17 Legal Services 26,576 73,094 (46,518) 5,000 (51,518) 84,450 138,450 (54,000) 3.4

Page 5

P
age 66



General  Fund Service Area 2021/22 Monthly Outturn to September 2021

Estimate to Date Actual to Date
Variance to 

Date

Timing 

Differences

Variance 

excluding 

timing 

Differences

Est 2021/22
Forecast 

Outturn

Forecast 

Variation to 

Year End

Carry 

Forwards
Ref

cp18 Performance & Scrutiny 1,986 446 1,540 1,540 12,300 12,300

cp19 Corporate Support Team 52,568 37,950 14,618 11,500 3,118 113,480 110,480 3,000 3.5

cp20 Human Resources 67,988 69,796 (1,808) (1,808) 173,190 173,190 3.6

cp21 Committee Services 26,078 24,666 1,412 1,412 38,410 38,410

cp22 Customer Contact Centre 14,378 14,197 181 181 109,320 109,320

Support Services Salaries 1,001,228 989,485 11,743 11,743 2,008,290 2,018,290 (10,000) 3.7

HRA element of Support Services (681,664) (689,240) 7,576 7,576 (1,362,510) (1,362,510) 3.8

Support Services 1,920,986 2,034,918 (113,933) (71,500) (42,433) 4,251,981 4,312,981 (61,000) 0

ep01 Environment & PlanningEmergency Planning 29,720 29,529 191 191 30,960 30,960

ep02 Local Land Charges 10,008 10,450 (442) (442) 27,460 27,460

ep03 DSO Grounds Maintenance (340,178) (303,085) (37,093) (33,000) (4,093) (777,110) (762,110) (15,000) 4.1

ep04 Allotments 1,224 (826) 2,050 2,050 5,140 5,140

ep05 Cemeteries 60,854 44,184 16,670 3,000 13,670 137,800 126,800 11,000 4.2

ep06 Countryside Management 49,303 44,756 4,547 4,547 103,970 103,970

ep07 Dog Warden Service 10,950 11,888 (938) (938) 23,560 23,560

ep08 Environmental Health 15,646 (633) 16,279 4,000 12,279 121,850 109,850 12,000 4.3

ep09 Land Drainage 19,110 11,352 7,758 7,758 43,320 43,320 4.4

ep10 Licences (44,790) (41,937) (2,853) (10,000) 7,147 (80,590) (80,590)

ep11 Parks 266,713 302,127 (35,414) (13,000) (22,414) 619,417 677,417 (58,000) 4.5

ep12 Pest Control 128 (1,554) 1,682 1,682 1,600 1,600

ep13 Recycling (111,024) (230,830) 119,806 143,000 (23,194) 518,390 557,390 (39,000) 4.6

ep14 Refuse Collection 242,684 217,726 24,958 36,000 (11,042) 489,190 508,190 (19,000) 4.7

ep15 Street Cleansing 45,946 99,233 (53,287) (28,000) (25,287) 132,613 160,613 (28,000) 4.8

ep16 Waste Business Improvements (13,793) (31,411) 17,618 6,000 11,618 (27,579) (39,579) 12,000 4.9

ep17 Building Inspection (79,872) (99,762) 19,890 37,000 (17,110) (89,750) (59,750) (30,000) 4.10

ep18 Car Parks (60,597) 7,554 (68,151) 17,000 (85,151) (309,210) (153,210) (156,000) 4.11

ep19 Community Planning 21,774 15,173 6,601 5,000 1,601 179,850 179,850

ep20 Development Control (412,779) (166,994) (245,785) 5,000 (250,785) (749,410) (642,410) (107,000) 4.12

ep22 Environmental Initiatives 660 660 0 0 1,320 1,320

ep21 Economic Development 12,616 (23,864) 36,480 36,000 480 87,860 87,860

ep23 Planning Policy 84,347 51,694 32,653 (8,000) 40,653 474,379 474,379 4.13

Environment and Planning Salaries 2,652,173 2,633,800 18,373 18,373 5,338,830 5,382,830 (44,000) 4.14

Environment & Planning 2,460,823 2,579,231 (118,408) 200,000 (318,408) 6,303,860 6,764,860 (461,000) 0

Position as at September 2021 8,563,847 6,895,894 1,667,952 1,612,500 55,452 17,247,008 17,779,008 (532,000) 15,000

Page 6

P
age 67



Summary of Timing Differences

Under spends/(Overspends) caused by timing differences

Monthly Outturn Report 1st April 2021 to 31st September 2021

£ £

DSO Housing Repairs Work in Progress (70,000)

Awaiting material invoices 70,000

Skips budget to be reprofiled (12,000)

Painting budget to be reprofiled (54,000)

Vehicle leasing budget to be profiled (86,000)

Under recovery of overheads (60,000) (212,000)
Homelessness September B&B costs paid in October 14,000 14,000
Housing Strategy Income received in advance for Rural Housing Enabling Services 41,000 41,000
CCTV CCTV Security invoices for September 2021 6,000 6,000
Children and Young People Safeguarding budget to be reprofiled 5,000

Other Minor Variations 3,000 8,000
Community Safety Domestic Abuse grant received from MHCLG 33,000

Safer Streets grant received from PCC 51,000

Invoice to PCC raised twice in error 90,000

Outstanding accrual - Legal fees 3,000 177,000
Leisure Centre Outstanding accrual for Leisure Centre Management Fee for March 2020 84,000 84,000
Leisure Promotion Payment to be made to Hinckley Club for Young People 5,000

Budgets to be reprofiled 3,000 8,000
Highways Miscellaneous Expenditure on ERDF  Covid 19 Recovery Scheme to be reclaimed (70,000) (70,000)
Corporate Management COVID 19 Discretionary Grant Small Business Grant - returned not yet repaid to MHCLG 60,000

COVID 19 Track & Trace - Grants not yet paid out 91,000

COVID 19 - Additional Restrictions Support Grant - grants money yet to be paid out in 

grants

707,000

COVID 19 - Restart Grants monies received but not paid out - money to be returned to 

MHCLG

752,000

COVID 19 Awaiting Prior Year Dec- March MHCLG SFC Compensation income (356,000)

Internet Bank Charges not yet processed 5,000

Audit Fees relating to quarter 1 8,000

Budgets BFWD from 2020/21 relating to COVID Expenditure to be reprofiled 43,000

Welcome Back Funding - Funding not yet received for costs incurred (66,000)

Members subscriptions paid in October 5,000 1,249,000
Council Tax / NNDR Income associated with legal costs incurred in collecting Council Tax and NNDR to be 

transferred from the collection fund

(115,000) (115,000)

Council Tax Support Contribution to Revs & Bens Partnership 5,000

Additional Income received for Local Council Tax Support Scheme (to be set aside) 81,000 86,000
Register and Borough Elections Expenditure in respect of S31 funding received for additional Covid related measures 

required to be implemented for May 2021 elections not reflected in actuals to date (Eligible 

expenditure still to be determined by Elections Manager)

29,000

Reprofile of Budget 2,000 31,000
Benefits Fraud and Rent 

Allowances

Outstanding Accrual relating to 2020/21 Grant Audit fees 14,000

Delay in receipt of grant income for Discretionary Housing Payments (36,000)

Benefits Payments to August & September  - reflected on the ledger in October 639,000

Subsidy Income to be received in October following completion of Mid Year Estimate (273,000)

Additional benefit costs incurred - income to be received after final subsidy claim 

completed

(265,000) 79,000

Industrial Estates NNDR Refund processed in October (23,000)

(23,000)
Miscellaneous Properties Service Charge income to be charged to the Revenues & Benefits Partnership (5,000)

Rental Income relating to former Co op site yet to be processed (20,000)

Manned Security costs relating to August not yet processed 6,000

Crescent rental invoices re 2020/21 to be written off 123,000

Annual rent increase for part of quarter 1 and Quarter 2 - not yet invoiced 7,000

Transfer for Refuse Disposal not yet processed 6,000

Cleaning costs at the Atkins and Hub 4,000 121,000
Asset Management Outstanding cleaning costs for Jubilee building & Station Road Toilets 8,000 8,000
Council Offices

Transfer for Refuse Disposal not yet processed 1,000 1,000
Finance Support Awaiting agency invoices 2,000

Other Minor Variations 4,000 6,000
I.T. Support Invoices re future years paid in advance (103,000)

(103,000)
Legal Services

legal costs recovered earlier this yr than current profile - reprofile to be done 9,000

timings in respect of annual subscription to online legal updates (4,000) 5,000
Corporate Support Team Awaiting  postal invoices 1,500

awaiting equipment maint invoices 7,000

awaiting printing invoices 3,000 11,500
Grounds maintenance DSO Agency Budget to be reprofiled (15,000)

prepaid vehicle leasing cost (21,000)

September fuel cost to be processed in October 3,000 (33,000)
Cemeteries Awaiting tree maintenance invoices 3,000 3,000
Environmental Health Minor variations 4,000 4,000
Licences Premises Licence income budget to be reprofiled (10,000) (10,000)
Parks Tree budget to be reprofiled (10,000)

Other minor variations (3,000) (13,000)
Recycling Awaiting repairs and maintenance invoices 6,000

Awaiting hired and contracted invoices 8,000

September Fuel to be processed in October 20,000

Recycling credits invoice to be raised (24,000)

Prepaid vehicle leasing costs (22,000)

Page 7

Page 68



Summary of Timing Differences

Under spends/(Overspends) caused by timing differences

Monthly Outturn Report 1st April 2021 to 31st September 2021

£ £
Garden Waste receivables to be adjusted 155,000 143,000

 Refuse  August fuel charges processed in September 10,000

Agency Budget to be reprofiled (22,000)

Prepaid vehicle leasing costs (70,000)

Awaiting tipping invoices from LCC 102,000

Bulky income to be transferred to Street Cleansing 16,000 36,000

Street Cleansing Q2 bulky transfer to be done (16,000)

Prepaid vehicle leasing costs (23,000)

Equipment purchase budget to be reprofiled 9,000

August fuel charges processed in September 2,000 (28,000)

Waste Business Improvements Agency and repairs and maintenance recharge to be done 6,000 6,000

Building Inspection Awaiting quarter 1 2021/22 Partnership costs invoice from Blaby District Council 37,000 37,000
Community Planning Payments to be made for Clockwise Credit Development Worker May - Sep 2021 5,000 5,000
Car Parks Awaiting Castle Car Park rental invoice 17,000 17,000
Development Control Awaiting July-September invoices from Harborough District Council for Manager post 5,000 5,000
Economic Development Heritage Action Zone grant income received in advance 24,000

Kickstart payments to be made in October 14,000

Awaiting invoices for Heritage Action Zone projects 5,000

Shared service invoice to Oadby and Wigston to be raised (16,000)

Reprofile of events budgets required 9,000 36,000
Planning Policy Awaiting MHCLG grant reimbursement for Markfield NDP (20,000)

Historic England Grant funding for Bradgate Stables 12,000 (8,000)

TOTAL TIMING DIFFERENCES 1,612,500 1,612,500

Page 8

Page 69



Outturn Explanations April 2021 to September 2021

Key : ( ) = overspend

Forecasted year end variations Variation 

To Date

Forecast 

Year End

Forecast Year 

End Variance 

August

coronavirus 

related

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Community Services (400) (594) (648) (752)

1.1 Homelessness

Bed & Breakfast overspend to date (includes additional Covid 19 spend) (122) (265) (300) (300)

Prevention fund underspend to date 8 30 10 0

Additional homeless grants from MHCLG 60 60 60 0

Additional income from Housing Benefits & B&B contributions 58 100 110 130

Income from bond scheme repayments 21 0 0

Other Minor Variations (2) 9 0 0

1.2 Private Sector Housing

Reduction in Private Sector Housing rent and associated costs (4) (11) (11) 0

Legal Fees relating to defending judicial review (5) (8) (8)

1.3 Community Safety

Minor Project Underspend to date 25 15 15 0

Other Minor Variations 3 0 0 0

1.4 Leisure Centre

Leisure Centre closure due to Covid 19 - Year end projection based on latest predictions and covers both management 

fee and assistance payments .   The year to date variations are management fee (460k), additional assistance (31k) 

respectively

(491) (559) (559) (559)

Receipt of  grant monies from Sport England 14 14 14 0

Other Minor variations 2 0 0 0

1.5 Sports Development

Delays to Projects 21 0 0

Lower grant income to be received that expected 0 (15) (15)

1.6 Markets

Reduction in Market Income (15) (25) (25) (15)

Additional casual wages costs arising out of the Pandemic (to provide staff who have been shielding) (5) (8) (8) (8)

1.7 Directorate Salary Variation 32 69 69

Corporate Services 805 584 584 739

2.1 Corporate Management

Covid 19 Government Funding 669 669 669 669

Agency costs incurred to cover additional work as a result of COVID - funded from government funds shown above (14) (20) (20) (20)

Other Miscellaneous costs incurred as a result of COVID - funded from government funds shown above (11)

COVID 19 Government Funding - Contain Funding 312

Costs Associated with COVID covered by funding above (35)

Contain Outbreak Management Fund 129

Covid 19 - Estimated Central Govt Compensation  Fees and Charges 0 125 125 125

Additional Enforcement & Compliance costs associated with COVID 19 (8)

Other Minor variances (1)

2.2 Corporate Management (Civic)

Minor Variances 5 0 0 0

2.3 Council Tax/ NNDR

Income from legal costs recovered lower than anticipated (15) 0 0 0

2.4 Register and Borough Elections

Minor Variations 5 0 0

Reduction in Individual Electoral Registration Funding 0 (5) (5)

2.5 Benefits Fraud and Rent Allowances

Reduction in Income from Benefits Overpayments due to Universal Credit (91) (40) (40)

Other Minor Variances 1

2.6 Industrial Estates

Additional NNDR incurred on Vacant Industrial Units - may be able to reclaim some of this if the units are rented out later 

in year

(24) (25) (25) (25)

Other Minor Variances 4

2.6 Misc Property

Additional NNDR incurred on vacant units at the Atkins unit - May be able to reclaim some if the units are rented out later 

in year

(18) (18) (18) (10)

Invoices written off - relating to Crescent for 2020/21 (123) (123) (123)

Other Minor Variances (2)

2.7 Directorate Salary Variation 22 21 21

Support Services (45) (61) (161) 0

3.1 Asset Management

Other Minor Variations (6)

3.2 Council Offices

Metered Water Costs lower than anticipated 2

3.3 I.T. Support

Agency Staffing Costs (9) (190)

Additional telephone costs (11)

Other Minor Variances 1

3.4 Legal Services

Additional Agency costs to cover vacant posts and to meet capacity issues (70) (90) (33)

Increased legal costs recovered savings of 6k expected at yr end 6 6 6

shared service employee budget for legal manager unused 15k so far, 30k for the whole year if remains unused 15 30

3.5 Corporate Support

Estimated savings due to lower printing / stationery / postage (less office working) 3 3 5

Estimated temp savings due to lower printing and stationery (less office working) 3

Estimated temp savings due to lower postage usage (less office working) 3

3.7 Directorate Salary Variation 11 (10) 15

3.8 HRA Element of Support Services - Support Service variations 8 0 30

Page 9

Page 70



Outturn Explanations April 2021 to September 2021

Key : ( ) = overspend

Forecasted year end variations Variation To 

Date

Forecast 

Year End

Forecast Year 

End Variance 

August

coronavirus 

related

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Environment and Planning (328) (461) (484) (245)

4.1 DSO Grounds Maintenance 

Under recovery of internal income (no tree works taking place due to staffing issues) (15) (15) (15)

Minor variations 0 0

4.2 Cemeteries 

Additional income from burial fees 11 11 5 0

Minor variations 3 0

4.3 Environmental Health

Additional Income(breeding Licences) 12 12 0 0

4.4 Land Drainage

Hired & Contracted services underspend to date 7 0 0

Other minor variations 1 0 0 0

4.5 Parks

Impact of re-phasing crematorium project (22) (58) (58)

4.6 Recycling 

Overspend due to covid and agency costs being higher than budgeted (50) (61) (40) (25)

Inflation adjustment for Powers tipping fees (10) (10)

Additional income from green waste charges 32 32

Minor variations 5

4.7 Refuse 

Overspend due to covid and agency costs being higher than budgeted (10) (34) (40) (25)

Estimated saving on Tipping Fees 0 15 15

Minor variations (1) 0 0 0

4.8 Street Cleansing

Agency and overtime overspend due to vacant posts (5) 0 0

Essential repairs required to box van (8)

Under recovery of internal income (17) (28) (28) 0

Minor Variations 5 0 0 0

4.9 Waste Business Improvements

Wage saving due to delay in market re-opening 4 5 5 5

Additional fees and charges income (bins at new properties) 7 7 0

4.10 Building Inspection

Income shortfall due to reduction in demand (23) (30) (25) (25)

Other minor variations 6 0 0

4.11 Car Parks 

Shortfall in pay and display income (74) (128) (128) (128)

Shortfall in Season Ticket income (16) (32) (32) (32)

NNDR underspend 2 2 2 0

Minor variations 3 2 2 0

4.12 Development Control

Shortfall in income from planning applications (84) 0 0

Enforcement Legal fees overspend - legal advice for enforcement cases (16) (20) (20)

Agency staff/consultancy overspend (56) (30) (45)

Appeals overspend (to be funded from provision) (37) 0 0

Write off debt (38) (38) (38)

Staff advertising costs (19) (19) 0

Other minor variations (1) 0 0

4.13 Planning Policy

Local Plan underspend to date 31 0 0

Neighbourhood Plans underspend to date 5 0 0

Strategic Growth underspend to date 6 0 0

Other minor variations (1) 0 0

4.14 Directorate Salary Variation 20 (44) (44)

Forecasted  (overspend) saving 32 (532) (709) (258)

Page 10

Page 71



Capital Programme Summary

30th September 2021

Description Latest Budget

£

Budget to Date

£

Actual

£

Variance to 

date

£

General Fund

Corporate and Support Services 1,040,113 151,895 62,531 89,364

Environment and Planning 8,268,445 2,483,163 1,198,427 1,284,736

Community Services 2,887,530 1,798,660 252,341 1,546,319

12,196,088 4,433,718 1,513,299 2,920,419

HRA 11,283,814 6,826,592 3,365,479 3,461,113

Grand Total 23,479,902 11,260,310 4,878,778 6,381,532

Page 11

P
age 72



Capital Expenditure

30th September 2021

Code Description Latest Budget 

£

Budget to Date 

£

Actual 

£

Variance 

£

Ref No

Corporate Services

spv  Asset Management Enhancement Works 50,000 25,010 35,821 (10,811)

ros  New Performance Management System 24,736 24,736 22,000 2,736

ssy  Making Tax Digital 12,000 6,000 0 6,000

ssa  General Renewal -Extensions 15,000 7,500 10,383 (2,883)

stb  Earl Shilton Toilets 0 0 (31,598) 31,598

swd  Server/Network Hardware Replacements 69,500 34,764 0 34,764

swf  Telephony Upgrade 0 0 (18,591) 18,591

swk  Mobile Working Devices 0 0 0 0

swj  Jubilee Building Works 18,077 8,081 19,646 (11,565)

suh  Shared Revenue and Benefits 0 0 68 (68)

swm  Data Centre Upgrade 2021-22 172,000 0 0 0

swh  Office 365 Consultancy Support 56,014 28,018 14,432 13,586

swo  IDOX System upgrade 17,786 17,786 10,370 7,416

swn  ICT Transitional Costs 200,000 0 0 0

sop  IT Future Operating Model 405,000 0 0 0

1,040,113 151,895 62,531 89,364

Environment & Planning

rfn  Parks : Major Works 10,000 5,002 10,487 (5,485)

rba  Hollycroft Park 14,500 14,500 0 14,500

rcs  Incab System (Tracker System) 14,000 7,002 0 7,002

ran  Memorial Safety Programme 5,950 2,976 1,020 1,956

rce  Recycling Containers 110,453 55,247 82,486 (27,239)

rjc  Environmental Improvements 51,100 26,110 720 25,391

rkt  Resurfacing Car Parks 125,485 87,997 3,542 84,455

sto  New Crematorium 5,745,586 1,081,317 846,381 234,937

rgg  Parish & Community Initiatives 225,172 150,202 44,973 105,229

rgo  Hinckley Community Initiative Fund -HCIF 12,000 6,000 0 6,000

rgp  Developing Communities Fund 422,333 211,164 86,779 124,385

rgt  Davenport rd and Hays Lane imps 13,850 13,850 4,977 8,873

rkh  Heritage Action Zone 507,000 265,096 61,560 203,536

rky  Earl Shilton Shop Fronts 14,553 14,553 0 14,553

rcr  Electric Charging Points 373,446 223,506 73,662 149,844

rbm  Clarendon Park 150,414 75,236 0 75,236

rby  The Greens 150,480 75,270 0 75,270

sqg  Argents Mead Phase 2 26,000 26,000 0 26,000

swc  Lancaster Road Pedestrian Crossing 0 0 (20,000) 20,000

svo  Argents Mead Moat Improvements 153,500 78,302 1,841 76,461

svb  Waterside Open Space (SEA) 50,000 30,008 0 30,008

svj  Waterside Play Area 67,623 33,825 0 33,825

rgu  Ashby Road Cemetery drainage works 25,000 0 0 0

8,268,445 2,483,163 1,198,427 1,284,736

Community Services

rdq  Sports Facility Improvement Fund 397,720 292,762 1,320 291,442

rjq  Shop Front Improvements Barwell 3,090 3,090 0 3,090

rdi  Leisure Centre 0 0 256 (256)

roa  Major Works Grants 169,286 104,312 16,797 87,515

roh  Minor Works Grants 40,000 20,008 20,771 (763)

rom  Private Sector Housing Enforcement 100,000 50,020 1,165 48,855

rob  Disabled Facilities Grant 944,722 548,540 131,429 417,111

rop  CCTV Upgrade 2020-21 118,750 59,398 39,836 19,562

roq  Hoarding Project 314,148 231,678 27,942 203,736

rdp  Bosworth 1485 Sculpture Trail project 622,170 311,208 12,824 298,384

roe  Fuel Poverty Capital Fund 1,096 1,096 0 1,096

rof  Green Deal Capital Fund 176,548 176,548 0 176,548

2,887,530 1,798,660 252,341 1,546,319

Page 12Page 73



Capital Programme Variances over £20,000

Ref 

No
Description Explanation of Variance

Variance 

to date

y/e 

Variance

Corporate Services

1  Earl Shilton Toilets Awaiting prior year invoice 31,598 0

2  Server/Network Hardware Replacements Budget to be reprofiled 34,764 0

Environment & Planning

3  Environmental Improvements Budget  to be reduced due to fewer schemes 25,391

4  Resurfacing Car Parks Committed on  pedestrian access at Trinity Vicarage Road and Stockwell Head. 84,455

5  Parish & Community Initiatives Letter to be sent to Parish Councils. Budget committed 105,229

6  Developing Communities Fund Budget committed. Awaiting 3rd party evidence  before funds are released. 124,385

7  Heritage Action Zone Budget to be reprofiled 203,536

8  Electric Charging Points Quotes in the process of being obtained. Budget to be reprofiled 149,844

9  Clarendon Park 3G pitch no longer going ahead new scheme to be co-ordinated.  Funds to be carried forward 75,236 150,000

10  The Greens Awaiting legal confirmation on which areas dev contributions can be spend before 

commencement of procurement. Potential carry forward may be required

75,270

11  Argents Mead Phase 2 Consent gained from Historic England.   Third party archology advice required before project 

commencement. May require a carry forward.

26,000

12  Lancaster Road Pedestrian Crossing Awaiting prior year invoice 20,000

13  Argents Mead Moat Improvements Consent gained from Historic England.   Third party archology advice required before project 

commencement. May require a carry forward.

76,461

14  Waterside Open Space (SEA) Awaiting land adoption before Developer Contribution can be spent.  Will require a carry 

forward at year end

30,008 50,000

15  Waterside Play Area Awaiting land adoption before Developer Contribution can be spent.  Will require a carry forward at year end33,825 67,000

Community Services

16  Sports Facility Improvement Fund Budget to be revised when capital programme reviewed. External Contributions to be 

passported directly to organisations ( not  via the Council)

291,442
360,000

17  Major Works Grants Commitments including enquires not included in payments to date 87,515 0

18  Private Sector Housing Enforcement Enforcement takes place as when required 48,855 0

19  Disabled Facilities Grant Commitments including enquires not included in payments to date 417,111 0

20  Hoarding Project Project in progress budget to be reprofiled 203,736 0

21  Bosworth 1485 Sculpture Trail project Budget to be reprofiled 298,384 0

22  Green Deal Capital Fund Scheme in progress.  Budget to be reprofiled 176,548
0

Page 13

P
age 74



30th September 2021

HRA Capital Programme

Latest 

Budget

£

Budget to 

Date

£

Actual

£

Variance to 

date

£

Forecast Year 

End Savings 

(underspend)

Adaptation Of HRA Dwellings-Social Serv 393,330 196,742 171,003 25,739 0

Major Voids 674,777 317,659 224,967 92,692 35,000 lower than expected void numbers

Programmed Enhancements 423,940 222,644 56,499 166,145 10,000

lower than expected environmental works

Electrical Upgrades/Rewires 686,020 353,438 227,800 125,638 100,000

lower  than expected replacement 

requirement

Windows : Single to Double Glazing 78,770 39,398 33,252 6,146

Re-Roofing 651,280 357,430 299,955 57,475

Budget committed. Works expected to be 

completed by year end

Kitchen Upgrades 722,681 311,263 338,788 (27,525)

Boiler Replacement 972,960 486,670 291,068 195,602 Budget committed

Low Maintenance Doors 53,700 31,278 11,830 19,448

Shower Replacement Programme 71,560 35,794 21,549 14,245 10,000

Slight underspend based on current level 

of works

Sheltered Scheme Enhancements 97,830 48,936 7,699 41,237

Enhancement Works - Bathroom Upgrades 349,913 248,597 108,785 139,812

Fire Risk Assessments 514,170 387,550 165,377 222,173

Budget commitment. Current schedule 

works should be completed by year end

Affordable Housing 143,970 143,970 20,350 123,620

Ambion Court 2,000,381 1,841,119 1,172,771 668,348 Budget to Committed. To be reprofiled

Legionella 32,082 23,454 6,802 16,652

Asbestos 232,900 116,492 63,517 52,975 Budget to be reprofiled

Piper Alarm Upgrade 60,000 45,006 0 45,006 Budget committed

Mobile Solution Software 74,760 64,764 46,071 18,693 Budget to be reprofiled

Energy Efficiency Programme 840,000 420,168 0 420,168 Budget to be reprofiled

Housing Delivery 1,950,000 975,390 0 975,390 £550k currently committed

Middlefield Lane 58,790 58,790 0 58,790 Awaiting final retention release

Windows and Doors - Lad 2 200,000 100,040 97,395 2,645

11,283,814 6,826,592 3,365,479 3,461,113 155,000

Page 14

P
age 75



Housing Revenue Account

Key : ( ) = overspend

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 F'CASTED 

LATEST  BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE VARIANCE F'CASTED VARIATION

ESTIMATE to September to Septemberto September TIMING Excl TIMING OUTTURN YEAR END REF
 

SUMMARY HRA £ £       £       £ £ £ £ £

INCOME

Dwelling Rents (12,851,130) (6,485,140) (6,590,495) 105,355 105,000 355 (12,851,130) - 1

Non Dwelling Rents (garages & land) (85,070) (8,668) (7,835) (833) - (833) (85,070) - 

(12,936,200) (6,493,808) (6,598,330) 104,522 105,000 (478) (12,936,200) - 

EXPENDITURE

Supervision & Management (General) 2,455,442 1,174,825 1,153,000 21,825 (7,000) 28,825 2,468,442 (13,000) 2

Supervision & Management (Special) 685,610 320,705 314,475 6,230 35,000 (28,770) 757,610 (72,000) 3

Lump Sum LCC pension contribution 113,290            56,668               56,645                23 23 113,290 - 

Contribution to Housing Repairs A/C 3,192,170 - - - - - 3,192,170 - 

Depreciation (Item 8 Debit) 2,692,510         - - - - - 2,692,510 - 

Capital Charges : Debt Management 1,060 532                    530                      2 - 2 1,060 - 

Increase in Provision for Bad Debts 100,000 - - - - - 60,000 40,000 4

Interest on Borrowing 1,964,260         982,130 - 982,130 982,000 130 1,964,260 - 5

11,204,342 2,534,860 1,524,649 1,010,211 1,010,000 211 11,249,342 (45,000)

Net Income/Cost of Services (1,731,858) (3,958,948) (5,073,681) 1,114,733 1,115,000 (267) (1,686,858) (45,000)
- 

Interest Receivable (35,000) - - - - - (35,000) - 

IAS19 Adjustment (267,340) - - - - - (267,340) - 

Net Operating (Income)/Cost (2,034,198) (3,958,948) (5,073,681) 1,114,733 1,115,000 (267) (1,989,198) (45,000)

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contribution to Piper Alarm Reserve 30,000 - - - - - 30,000 - 

Contribution to Pension Reserve 3,520 - - - - - 3,520 - 

Transfer to Major Reserves 316,938 - - - - - 316,938 - 

Transfer to Regeneration Reserve 1,500,000 - - - - - 1,500,000 - 

Surplus / Deficit (183,740) (3,958,948) (5,073,681) 1,114,733 1,115,000 (267) (138,740) (45,000)

LATEST BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE VARIANCE F'CASTED VARIATION

ESTIMATE to September to Septemberto September TIMING Excl TIMING OUTTURN YEAR END REF

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

SUPERVISION & MANAGEMENT (GENERAL)   

Employees 1,182,500         506,142            479,126              27,016 6,000 21,016 1,156,500 26,000 2.1

Premises Related Expenditure 133,970            85,278               91,192                (5,914) (5,914) 164,970 (31,000) 2.2

Transport Related Expenditure 16,370               8,188                 6,406                  1,782 - 1,782 16,370 - 

Supplies & Services 236,562            124,775            119,639              5,136 (13,000) 18,136 232,562 4,000 2.3

Central & Administrative Expenses 921,110            460,732            463,532              (2,800) (2,800) 921,110 - 

Gross Expenditure 2,490,512 1,185,115 1,159,895 25,220 (7,000) 32,220 2,491,512 (1,000)

Revenue Income (35,070) (10,290) (6,895) (3,395) - (3,395) (23,070) (12,000) 2.4

Recharges - - - - - - - - 

Total Income (35,070) (10,290) (6,895) (3,395) - (3,395) (23,070) (12,000)

Net Expenditure to HRA 2,455,442 1,174,825 1,153,000 21,825 (7,000) 28,825 2,468,442 (13,000)

SUPERVISION & MANAGEMENT (SPECIAL)  

Employees 687,920            291,570            316,370              (24,800) 8,000 (32,800) 748,920 (61,000) 3.1

Premises Related Expenditure 436,910 209,239            190,765              18,474 19,000 (526) 454,910 (18,000) 3.2

Transport Related Expenditure 14,740 7,388                 6,022                  1,366 0 1,366 14,740 0

Supplies & Services 151,320 95,568               93,269                2,299 0 2,299 143,320 8,000 3.3

Central & Administrative Expenses 119,130 59,736               52,173                7,563 8,000 (437) 119,130 0 3.4

Capital Charges 4,990 2,496                 -                      2,496 2,496 4,990 0

Gross Expenditure 1,415,010 665,997 658,599 7,398 35,000 (27,602) 1,486,010 (71,000)

Revenue Income (700,380) (345,292) (344,124) (1,168) 0 (1,168) (699,380) (1,000) 3.5

Recharges (29,020) 0 0 0 0 0 (29,020) 0

Total Income (729,400) (345,292) (344,124) (1,168) 0 (1,168) (728,400) (1,000)

Net Expenditure to HRA 685,610 320,705 314,475 6,230 35,000 (28,770) 757,610 (72,000)

Page 15

Page 76



Outturn Explanations April 2021 to September 2021

Key : ( ) = overspend

Forecasted year end variations Timing Variation 

To Date

Forecast 

Year End

£000's £000's £000's

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 1,115 (4) (45)

1 Rents -1st to 3rd October need excluding from September figures 105 0 0

2 SUPERVISION & MANAGEMENT (GENERAL)   (7) 30 (13)

Employees: 6 21 26

£6k Holiday Pay/Flexi to be processed at year end 6 0 0

Severance Pay savings 0 10 20

Staffing Restructure underspend 0 3 6

Salary underspend to date 0 7 0

Other Minor Variations 0 1 0

Premises Related Expenditure: 0 (6) (31)

Council Tax overspend 0 (5) (30)

Premises Insurance Overspend 0 (1) (1)

Supplies & Services: (13) 18 4

IT Licences paid in advance (18) 0 0

Outstanding accrual - Audit fees 5 0 0

Underspend to date - Tenant association support costs 0 17 0

IT overspend 0 (16) (16)

Legal Fees- underspend to date 0 10 20

Subscriptions underspend to date 0 4 0

Other Minor Variations 0 3 0

2.4 Revenue Income: 0 (3) (12)

Shortfall in Legal Fees recovered 0 (6) (12)

Other Minor Variations 0 3 0

3 SUPERVISION & MANAGEMENT (SPECIAL)   35 (34) (72)

Employees: 8 (33) (61)

£8k Holiday Pay/Flexi to be processed at year end 8 0 0

Salary overspend due to fully staffed service 0 (3) (6)

Overtime overspend -vacant post & new member of staff training (double cover) 0 (30) (55)

Premises Related Expenditure: 19 0 (18)

Outstanding electricity, gas & water  costs for August/September 9 0 0

Awaiting caretaking/window cleaning invoices for July, August & September 10 0 0

Additional Cleaning costs 0 (11) (18)

Electricity & Gas underspend to date 0 9 0

Other minor Variations 0 2 0

3.3 Supplies & Services: 0 0 8

Piper Alarm System underspend 0 0 8

3.4 Central & Administrative Expenses: 8 0 0

Outstanding charges relating to contact centre, corporate support  & debtors 8 0 0

3.5 Revenue Income: 0 (1) (1)

Income Shortfall from sheltered scheme service charges 0 (4) (4)

Income shortfall from Room Hire 0 (3) (6)

Additional Lifeline income 0 6 9

4 Provision for Bad Debts: 0 0 40
Forecast reduction in contribution required towards rent bad debts 0 0 40

5 Interest on borrowing: 982 0 0

Interest due on HRA PWLB loans 982 0 0

3.1

3.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 16

Page 77



2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 F'CASTED F'CASTED 

HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT ORIGINAL LATEST BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE VARIANCE VARIATION

 BUDGET  BUDGET to Sept to Sept to Sept TIMING

Excl 

TIMING OUTTURN YEAR END REF

£       £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Administration 

Employee Costs 433,510 433,510 183,488 171,064 12,424 (3,000) 15,424 433,510 - 1

Transport Related Expenditure 3,880 3,880 1,942 3,980 (2,038) (2,038) 3,880 - 

Supplies & Services 132,070 154,157 89,623 64,179 25,444 8,000 17,444 139,157 15,000 2

Central Administrative Expenses 314,800 314,800 157,456 168,539 (11,083) (12,000) 917 314,800 - 3

Total Housing Repairs Administration 884,260 906,347 432,509 407,762 24,747 (7,000) 31,747 891,347 15,000

Programmed Repairs 677,400 717,400 374,696 325,685 49,011 47,000 2,011 707,400 10,000 4

Responsive Repairs 1,261,970 1,291,970 559,474 398,877 160,597 118,000 42,597 1,241,970 50,000 5

GROSS EXPENDITURE 2,823,630 2,915,717 1,366,679 1,132,324 234,355 158,000 76,355 2,840,717 75,000

Contribution from HRA (3,192,170) (3,192,170) 0 0 0 0 (3,192,170) - 

Accumulated Absences/ IAS 19 (73,690) (73,690) 0 0 0 0 (73,690) - 

TOTAL INCOME (3,265,860) (3,265,860) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,265,860) - 

Contribution to HRA Reserves 425,000 425,000 0 0 0 0 0 425,000

NET EXPENDITURE (17,230) 74,857 1,366,679 1,132,324 234,355 158,000 76,355 (143) 75,000

Variances TIMING VARIANCE Outturn

£000's £000's

1 Salary vacancies and maternity leave 15,000 

Accumulated Absences Accounting Adjustment (3,000)

(3,000) 15,000 - 

2 Software Invoices paid in advance (14,000)

Asbestos budget to be reprofiled 6,000 

Asbestos estimated budget saving 10,000 5,000 

Legionella testing estimated saving 5,000 10,000 

Consultants budget to be reprofiled 16,000 

8,000 15,000 15,000 

3 Impact of ICT costs paid in advance (12,000)

4 Painting/Soffits  Budget to be reprofiled 12,000 

Electrical servicing budget to be reprofiled 12,000 

Estimated underspend on Electrical Testing Budget 10,000 10,000 

Central heating awaiting servicing invoices 23,000 

47,000 10,000 10,000 

5 Work in Progress and overhead charges to be processed 91,000 

Budget to be reprofiled

Current demand lower than expected 10,000 43,000 50,000 

Lift Maintenance budget to be reprofiled 17,000 

118,000 43,000 50,000 

Page 17

P
age 78



- 1 - 

 

 
 

 

 

Finance & Performance Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

2021/2022 
 
 

 

Key to corporate aims 
 
1 – People 
2 – Places 
3 – Prosperity 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9

http://intranet/branding/Printlogo/HBBC%20col%20logo.jpg


- 2 - 

 

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY  
 

Date Issue Reason Outcomes Lead Officer Supports 
corporate aims 

 
 
 
 
17 January 2022 

Frontline service review – 
Environmental Health (alcohol, 
taxi and gambling licensing, 
tattooists and body piercing and 
scrap metal dealers 
 

Programme of frontline 
service reviews 
alcohol, taxi and 
gambling licensing; 
tattooists and body 
piercing; and scrap 
metal dealers) in a 
single report. 
 

Monitor performance Steve  
Merry 
 

1,2 

Financial outturn Quarter 2 -
2021/22 
 

Budget monitoring Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

      

 
 

 
 
 

28 March 2022 

Medium Term Financial Strategy Progress report Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Treasury Management Qtr3 – 
2021/22 

Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Performance and Risk 
Management Framework Qtr 1, 2 
& 3 -2021/2022 

Quarterly review Monitor performance 
and risk management 

Julie  
Kenny 

All 

Financial outturn Qtr 3 – 2021/22 Budget monitoring Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Sundry debts Qtr. 3 2020/21 Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Business rates and pooling 
update Qtr 3 – 2021/22 

Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Hinckley Leisure Centre – 
Performance Review 

Annual review Ensure performance 
and value for money 

Simon  
Jones 

All 

Frontline Service Review - 
Housing 

Programme of frontline 
service reviews 

Monitor performance Sharon 
Stacey 

All 

      

P
age 80



- 3 - 

 

Date Issue Reason Outcomes Lead Officer Supports 
corporate aims 

6 June 2022 
 

Sundry debts Qtr 4 – 2021/22  Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Frontline service review – 
StreetScene Services 

Programme of frontline 
service reviews 

Monitor performance Caroline 
Roffey 

All 

Business rates and pooling 
update Qtr 4 – 2021/2022 

Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Treasury Management Qtr 4 – 
2021/22 

Quarterly review Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Financial Outturn Qtr 4 – 2021/22 Budget Monitoring Monitor performance Ashley 
Wilson 

All 

Performance & Risk 
Management Framework Qtr 4 – 
2021/2022 

Quarterly review Monitor performance Julie  
Kenny 

All 

      

 
 

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Frontline service review - Environmental Health
	7 Financial outturn quarter 2 - 2021/22
	Financial Outturn report April to September 21 - Appendix 1

	9 Finance & Performance Scrutiny work programme

